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The financial year 2007-2008 was a challenging year
for the Group. The Group recorded total revenues of
approximately HK$941,000,000 in this financial year,
around 24% lower than those of HK$1,237,000,000 in
the corresponding period of last year. The Group recorded
a net loss of HK$14,895,000 in this financial year

The decline in the turnover and profit was attributable
to a number of factors. These include the investment in
our new office in Japan incurring additional expenses for
the Group, the continual keen market competition in the
electronic consumer products industry adversely affecting
the profitability margin of the Group’s existing products,
the Group’s forgoing of low value-added, low profit
margin products at the time when new product launching
was unexpectedly postponed, and the increase in labour
costs on the Mainland together with the appreciation of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars adversely affecting

the Group's operation costs on the Mainland.

In view of the decline, the Group’s management has
already taken steps to control the production costs, closely
monitor the product development schedules and expand

the customer base for new products.
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Analysis of Turnover by Principal Activity
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64% ELEFER
Electronic Handheld
Products

The Group’s two main lines of businesses are the original
design manufacturing products (“ODM") business
and the electronic handheld products business. In this
financial year, the electronic handheld products business
contributed approximately 64% of the Group’s total
revenue. As to the ODM business, the contribution of
this business segment in this financial year was 36% of
the Group’s total revenue, a decrease from 37% of last
year. The Group would strive to develop and manufacture

products with reasonable profit margins.

In analyzing the Group’s revenue by geographical markets,
other Asian markets including Japan are still the largest
source of revenue for the Group. The revenue generated
from the Hong Kong market was 13%, increasing from
9.3% of last year. The Group will continue to focus
on developing the Asian markets, especially the newly
developed markets, and develop more electronic handheld
products with multi-media features and educational
contents. At the same time, the Group will strive to forge
close partnership with new customers so as to explore
the Japanese market. The Group has taken some new

orders in this regard and is expecting contribution to the

2008 JAF K& Annual Report
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HApEE T 5 (B B )
73.2% Other Asian markets (including Japan)

revenue growth from the new business in financial year
2008-2009.

The demand for 3C (computer, communications and
consumer) electronic products will be increasing and this
will mark the future development trend. As globalization
and worldwide competition intensifies, the Group will
continue its efforts in attracting talents and actively
seeking technology partners, and this will be the essential

element for the Group’s long term growth.

As a whole, the Group will continue its efforts in
developing and exploring Asian emerging markets
and developing new products, and it is expected that
this will deliver a better driving force for the Group’s
business growth. Despite that the Group has faced many
challenges in the past financial year, the Group’s overall
operation and financial status is still solid and healthy.
It is believed that with the launch of new products and
the future development of the Japanese market, the

business transformation of the Group which lasts for more
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WERBE S TE  XERREEABMN than a year will come to an end resulting in business
& o improvement.

RERE Final Dividend

EEg([EFQ ) TEZ2ASHRERES N The Board of Directors (the “Board”) does not

E-FEN\F=A=t-ALEEZ
KEBE (ZTTHE  25810) -

recommend any payment of final dividend (2007:
HK2.5 cents) to the shareholders for the year
ended 31st March 2008.
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Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our

shareholders, customers, suppliers and bankers
for their continual support. | would also like
to extend my appreciation to all the staff for
their dedicated work and their contribution

throughout the year.

I h
ABERmBERERPER)
CERTIFICATE AWARD FOR
THE BEST BRAND ENTERPRISE
(GREATER CHINA)

2007
AESES® 0 By order of the Board
FE Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
EEEELTATHL Chairman
BAE ZEZENFLA+NR Hong Kong, 18th July, 2008

2008 §AF % Annual Report
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Financial Review

Revenue of the financial year is approximately HK$941
million, which is 24% lower than approximately HK$1,237
million of the previous year. During the year under review,
electronic handheld products business and original
design manufacturing business recorded revenues of
approximately HK$602 million and approximately HK$339

million respectively.

Operating loss for the year is approximately HK$14 million
(2007: operating profit of approximately HK$82 million).
After charging finance costs of approximately HK$0.1
million and other expense of approximately HK$3 million
in total (2007: finance costs of approximately HK$0.2
million and other expenses of approximately HK$4 million
in total), loss before tax is approximately HK$17 million
(2007: profit before tax of approximately HK$78 million).
After taking into account the taxation credit, loss for the

year is approximately HK$15 million.
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Financial Review (Continued)

On the balance sheet side, inventories have decreased by
approximately HK$55 million to approximately HK$116
million and trade receivables decreased by approximately

HK$19 million to approximately HK$145 million.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of balance sheet
date amounted to approximately HK$252 million which
was 8% lower than approximately HK$273 million of the

previous year.

It is noteworthy that the balance sheet of the Group is
getting healthier as compared with previous year and sets

a strong and solid foundation for future business growth.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 31st March, 2008, the cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$252 million in total, which was
approximately HK$21 million or 8% lower than those
of twelve months ago. Total bank borrowings were
approximately HK$3 million (2007: nil). All the bank
borrowings are denominated in Japanese Yen with fixed

interest rate and short term in nature.

As at 31st March, 2008, the gearing ratio, defined as
total bank borrowings divided by shareholders’ equities,
has been kept below 1% in the twelve months’ period.
The interest expense for the twelve months’ period
have decreased from approximately HK$0.2 million to

approximately HK$0.1 million.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March, 2008, the contingent liabilities of
the Group were approximately HK$9 million (2007:
approximately HK$4 million).

2008 JAF K& Annual Report
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Foreign Currencies and Treasury Policy

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars or Renminbi. A small portion of the
Group’s raw material purchase, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Japanese Yen. The usual treasury policy
of the Group is to manage significant currency exposure
and minimize currency risk whenever it may have material
impact to the Group. During the twelve months period,
the Group manages its foreign exchange exposure caused
by the appreciation of Renminbi by entering into hedging
forward contracts. The Group does not engage in any

interest rate or currencies speculations.
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Business Review

In the financial year of 2007-2008, the SBU's (strategic
business unit) turnover and gross profit have recorded a

drop as compared with the last financial year.

Due to ongoing keen competition in worldwide electronic
dictionary market, most competitors have been slashing
the retail prices significantly in order to capture the market
share. To stay competitive in the market, it is inevitable
that we had to respond by cutting our selling prices and

offering deeper discounts to our distributors.

Furthermore, there has been significant upward pressure
on the materials and labor costs, and this has been made
worse by the continual appreciation of Renminbi. As a
result the sales revenues and gross profit margin of the

SBU have been adversely affected.

2008 §AF % Annual Report

11



12

TEE (BEKR) AR A7 Group Sense (International) Limited

EEENWRD W (E)

Management Discussion & Analysis (Cont'd)

EFEH(E)

Electronic Dictionary (Cont'd)

%i%@ﬁg (nﬁ

E-ZZ2L /2T \FYHHRFEERFHE
MBHRE—EMER - EHEFEATIS N
HEEREAN LERSRALRFPHERSIERE
Mo AT AHMNEEBRSEREENR
Mg -

o

£

pal

BB
m}*

S TR TSR E B BAR - NEEE
‘%@%Zuuﬁé‘a RiFpiHEE -BRZ
B REREN  ASBUEZZZEN\ /=%
ZNFYRFEDNANZEERIFZEBRI=
Er‘\]o

i
fim

AR AR R B A T8 B AR R BT
BROKARES - LEHEAREEXTETT
BT SASBUNERENXRIFE K
SBURS B BB T H R RIZMEK
BERHRAER - REFEENHE YT EE
PROARIES] - AR AENENE -

2008 /A& Annual Report

Business Review (Continued)

In the financial year 2007-2008, some newly developed
markets have recorded business growth. The overall
electronic dictionary market in those countries continues
to grow and in particular, the student market segment
has expanded satisfactorily. However, the growth pace has

slowed down due to recent economic overheat.

Outlook

Despite that the competition in the electronic dictionary
market is getting more intense, it is believed that with
the Group’s well-established brand name, distribution
networks and sound technology and product know-how,
the SBU can still manage to command a good business

prospect in the financial year of 2008-2009.

To minimize the squeeze on gross profit margin due to
upward pressure on the material and PRC labor costs,
and especially the continuous appreciation of Renminbi,
the SBU will strive to maintain a reasonable gross profit
margin through forging strong strategic partnership with
the components vendors and continuously enhancing
operational efficiency and containing the costs in product

development and bill of materials.
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Outlook (Continued)

The SBU continues to focus on developing medium and
high end products with more innovative designs, better
functional features, richer learning contents and leading
speech and translation technology. The SBU will co-
operate with several important partners in developing
speech-to-speech technology and in particular speech-to-

speech products for foreigners to learn Chinese.

With the launching of new products equipped with WiFi
and GSM connectivity in the financial year 2008-2009
for Hong Kong and overseas markets, it is believed that
the SBU can sustain its business growth and maintain its

leading position in the market.

Despite various uncertainties and unstable economic
environments in the newly developed markets such as
Vietnam, the SBU believes the growth in these developing
countries is promising. The SBU will monitor the markets
closely and adopt appropriate product and market

strategies and branding plan.

2008 JAF K& Annual Report
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Business Review

The SBU has experienced considerable decline in sales
revenue, which is one of the reasons for the Group’s loss
in the financial year 2007-2008.

Throughout the year, the SBU has put in significant
efforts in developing new businesses, developing and
manufacturing high value-added, unique products for
the Japanese and USA markets. On the other hand, the
conventional low value-added products line was forgone
so as to shift the SBU's engineering resources and research
capability to new products development. Amidst the
declining trend in Japanese market, and a continual drop
in sales of electronic dictionaries to major customers in
Japan, the priority was given to developing high value-
added electronic dictionaries and new businesses,
making use of the newly setup subsidiary and network
in Japan. However, the revenue contribution of these

new businesses in the financial year 2007-2008 was
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Business Review (Continued)

still minimal, due to a delay in the launching of new
products to the fourth quarter of the financial year. The
new products include categories of eBook and bluetooth
speaker for USA market, PHS wireless communication
adaptor for car navigation system and wireless ePOP
(electronic point-of-purchase) display device for Japanese
market. There are four other categories of new products
specially developed for Japanese market, all are expected

to be launched by mid of new financial year 2008-2009.

Outlook

The SBU’s shifting focus to high value-added products line
proves to be a correct one given the ever appreciation of
Renminbi currency and increasing labor cost in the People’s
Republic of China. This development strategy will be
consistently adopted in the new financial year 2008-2009
and another series of self designed new products are to be
launched for Japanese market by the middle of the new
financial year. These new products cover the categories of
bluetooth keyboard and bluetooth handset which are to
be complementary to new Japanese mobile phones, the

electronic stationery which is a brand new concept product

2008 JAF K& Annual Report
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Outlook (Continued)

not ever existing in the market, and wireless tabletop
ordering devices with display and touch panel which are
used in the large restaurant chains. Furthermore, several
key new products are under planning stage and expected
to be launched by end of the new financial year. All of the
new products are for Japanese market, and are initiated,
coordinated by the Group’s subsidiary in Japan under the
support of the SBU’s development team. This is the direct
result of the subsidiary’s considerable efforts in its first

year of establishment since end of March 2007.

Difficult situation will continue in the first half of the
financial year 2008-2009, due to the seasonal factor of
electronic dictionary business in Japan. Future business
growth is dependent on the new products to be launched
in early 2008. As most of the new products being
launched or developed belong to the new products
categories, which notwithstanding having a huge growth
potential, may need certain time before a positive market
response could be got. As such, the business result in this
new financial year is subject to the sales performance
of such new products. The SBU and its subsidiary in
Japan are continuing their utmost efforts to strive for the
targeted return with all these new products at earliest

possible time.
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Business Review

In the financial year 2006-2007, the SBU has been
focusing on developing various personal communication
products, by using WiFi, GPS and other technologies,
which could be used for Internet Telephony, Internet

Television, car navigation and tracking.

The SBU has invested more resources in developing
the vertical markets, that is, developing products
and applications for different industries’ applications.
Through wireless terminal, different industries could
have the information, enquiry, data input, transaction
and many other functions instantly transmitted and
handled, anytime, anywhere. Apart from developing
our products, the SBU has commenced the original
design manufacturing (ODM) business for other personal
communication products in the second half of the financial
year 2007-2008.

2008 §AF % Annual Report
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Outlook

In the financial year 2008-2009, the SBU will continue
focusing on developing vertical markets and ODM
business. With the increasing prevalence of the
communications technologies and networks, new
applications could be developed to cater for the various
needs of different industries. In turn, there will be
increasing demand for wireless communication terminals.
Unlike the electronic consumables, these products require
higher quality and thus will bring to the SBU more
reasonable profit margins. And this should suit better the

SBU as its long-term development strategy.

Wireless communication function will be indispensable
for most handheld electronic products. More and more
companies and factories will outsource the development
and manufacturing of handheld wireless communication
products. It is expected that this will provide stable orders
and revenue for the SBU’s ODM business in the financial
year 2008-2009. The SBU’s solid experience in designing,
developing and manufacturing wireless communication
products will be conducive to developing the SBU's ODM

business.
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Personal Communication Products (Cont'd)

RE2 (&)

ERE-—FEXHELUNBIES  ASBUDF]
HERAIM E-ZEEN_TTANFHH
FE - ASBUBER N — FRERE MR
HNEREE  UEAHWNERTR - 1o
F 317 % ™ %5 X ODME P 71 # 2 ANSBUEY R
REREH -

Outlook (Continued)

During the past one year when the SBU endeavoured to
reshuffle its business line, it has clearly laid down its future
development direction. In the financial year 2008-2009,
the SBU will strive to further improve its operation and
enhance the product quality so as to match well with in
the new business direction. The SBU will also focus on

developing vertical markets and its ODM customers.
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Employees Relations

As at 31st March, 2008, the Group has on its payroll 269
(2007: 262) employees in Hong Kong and 2,573 (2007:
3,674) employees in the Mainland China and 9 (2007: Nil)
employees in Japan, representing an increase of about
3%, a decrease of about 30% and an increase of 100%
respectively as compared with prior year. In addition to
salary remuneration and usual fringe benefits such as
annual leave, medical insurance and provident fund, the
Group also provides Share Incentive Plans for executive

directors and senior staff.

At the beginning and in the interim of every financial
year, the Group’s management holds Planning Meetings
with its senior staff to review together the Group’s past
performance, as well as to discuss with them the Group’s
future strategic plans, policies and developments. After
publication of the Group’s results announcement, staff
communication sessions are held to keep employees
abreast of the Group’s developments and also to
facilitate two-way dialogue between the management

and all level of employees. The management actively
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Employees Relations (Continued)

communicates with employees by means of “GSL SMS”
through intranet, staff newsletters and emails to ensure
free flow of information across different staff levels and
to promote information and experience sharing. All staff
are encouraged to express their views and feelings and
to propose suggestions on different aspects. Employee
satisfaction surveys are conducted regularly to help the
senior management gauge various concerns of the staff
and formulate appropriate solutions accordingly. A good
promotion system is in place to identify the potential staff
and help employees
prepare for their

career prospects.

The Group has
appointed a number
of professional
training consultants
to run workshops
for improving mid-
level management executives’ problem solving skills,
communication skills and team spirit building technique.
Other in-house training programmes have also been
organized to continuously develop the capabilities of all
levels of the staff. Moreover, employees are encouraged to
take outside programmes to acquire additional knowledge
and upgrade their skills. Staff may be nominated for
attending selected training schemes with full sponsorship.
Employees who are interested in other unselected courses
may still apply for the full or partial subsidies through the

Group’s Education Subsidizing Scheme.

As to care for the Community, the Group encourages its
employees to participate in various charitable events, like
Standard Chartered Marathon, NE Mountain Marathon,
ICT Sports and Fun Day and fund donation for charitable

organizations.
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Employees Relations (Continued)

Besides, it is the third year for the
Group to sponsor “Group Sense
Innovation and Entrepreneurial
Project Award” competition
organized by the Chinese University
of Hong Kong as to promote the
development of innovation potential
and entrepreneurial skills among

students.

ISO9001 AND 1SO14001

In order to enhance the administrative efficiency, the
ISO9001 Quality Management System and 1SO14001
Environmental Management System have been combined
since 2000. On-site surveillance assessment is conducted
regularly by independent assessors to ensure compliance
and continual improvement. Internal audit teams
have been organised to perform compliance audit
on an on-going basis. The Group has upgraded the
environmental management system to attain the new
ISO14001:2004 standard.
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The Company is committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance practices with a view to

protecting the interests of all of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) throughout the
financial year ended 31st March, 2008 as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) which came into effect on 1st
January, 2005.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the financial year ended 31st March,
2008.

THE BOARD

Currently, the Board of the Company comprises eleven
directors, including seven executive directors, namely Dr.
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman), Mr. Tam Wai Tong,
Thomas (Managing Director), Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai,
Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee Koon Hung, Dr. Fok
Ting Yeung, James and Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith; one
non-executive directors namely Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William;
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, Jp, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris
and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason. After taking into
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THE BOARD (Continued)

account of the relevant experience, skill and knowledge
of Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith as well as the contribution
of Ms. Luk to the Group in the past few years, Ms. Luk
was appointed by the Board as an executive director of
the Company on 7th June, 2007. Save as disclosed herein,
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2008, there

has been no change as to the composition of the Board.

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held
at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of regular board meetings are served to
all directors at least fourteen days before the meetings
to ensure that all directors are given the opportunity to
attend. Agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent out to all directors at least three days in advance
to ensure that all directors are given the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
Draft minutes of board meetings are circulated to all
directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the

matters considered by the Board and decisions reached.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2008, four
board meetings were held and the individual attendance

of each director is set out below:

HEESERE
Number of

meetings attended

BITES Executive Directors

BEZATE+(L/E) Tam Wai Ho, Samson Ip (Chairman) 4/4
BRER(BEFLALE) Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director) 4/4
S Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 4/4
ARAME Kazuhiro Otani 4/4
Z5 I Lee Koon Hung 4/4
EEF Fok Ting Yeung, James 4/4
[z Luk Chui Yung, Judith 4/4
FHTES Non-executive Director

EEIR Lo Chi Chung, William 2/4
BYEHITES Independent non-executive Directors

ok #28s - ATat Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp 3/4
AT B B Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
F®BX Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4

SR EFIEARE 2 BERELBR
BARERAEEZMBRE  BREREN
HEMBHRRALEEEEBZAREET
tF- B BEREAREREXHERRT
BEH -

B EMAAEIN0(NRQGEZHEE - XA H
EEIRABBENBYIENTES  URE
F-ZEAEBEERH S AEVBEEREERY
BUEAITESE - EFFCWANBIBIIERR

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, reviewing and
monitoring its financial performance, including preparing
and approving financial statements and overseeing
operational matters of the management. Daily business
operations and administration functions are delegated to

the management.

Pursuant to Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of the Listing Rules,
sufficient number of independent non-executive directors
have been appointed with one of them has appropriate
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board has received annual confirmation of independence
from the independent non-executive directors as required

under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The relationship between Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp and
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas is brothers. Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp. The
relationship between Mr. Lee Koon Hung and Ms. Luk
Chui Yung, Judith is husband and wife. Save for these
relationships, there are no other financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships among members of
the Board.

Currently, the Company has set up five committees
including Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Risk Management Committee, Executive Management
Committee and Share Option Committee. Each committee
is delegated with various responsibilities by the Board in
assisting the Board in the discharge of its duties and to
administer particular aspects of the Group’s activities.
Details of the role and function of each committee are
summarized below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Managing Director are Dr. Tam Wai
Ho, Samson Jp and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively.
The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director
are clearly segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual. The Chairman’s principal responsibility is to
manage the Board and the Managing Director’s principal
responsibility is to manage the Company's business. In
particular, the Chairman is responsible for the Group’s
corporate planning and financial management whereas the
Managing Director is responsible for the overall marketing

and sales strategies of the Group’s products.



TEERBRE (F)
Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

FHUTES

EHRRTEF2EZERBEEEH X
THERBARR 2 ARMAARERIR

FHMESSE

FHEZEEN - NNAANFERIL - ARFRIER
BRI ZSFAMENBASRMETMEZE SN
BEHE FWNZEEeKBEEENTESRE
BxEtirar (FHEZESIE) WA
BUFRTESMEKREERTHESE

FHEZESEENESSROBRARAH
M ENEERARREENSRTHABS
ez FMZEesFRI BT -XE
BARHTARRATEERSRTHRARZ
FHMRFAERTETZIRE - EEERILE
ARAEFZENRRITHRABZFHME - H B
ZEERERESE T ERRBEMEERF N
BARBERARAEEZEBEL 2 2 H 5

= o

=T

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The term of appointment of each of the non-executive
directors are fixed for a specific term, and shall be subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance

with the Company’s Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in
1996. The Company has adopted terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.1.3 of the Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises an executive director,
namely Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee) and two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and

Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to remuneration of directors
and senior management of the Company. It schedules to
meet at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration
of the executive directors and senior management of
the Company and assessing performance of executive
directors. In determining and approving the remuneration
of directors and senior management of the Company,
the Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such
as market competitiveness, individual performance and

achievement and company and divisional profitability.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has held two meetings
during the financial year ended 31st March, 2008 for
approving the remuneration package of the newly
appointed director, Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith and the
salary adjustment for executive directors and senior
management of the Company, approving the payment of
result bonus for and grant of share options to executive
directors and senior management of the Company.

The attendance of each member is set out below:

HEESERE
Number of

meetings attended

BERATHL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 2/2
AT B X Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 2/2
BR3¢ Wong Kon Man, Jason 2/2
EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE

ERZEERN—NNANEKYL - ARFER The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The
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Company has adopted terms of reference in compliance
with code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing,
Harris and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason and a non-executive
director, Mr. Lo Chi Chung, William.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include providing an independent and professional advice
on financial reporting, and evaluating the effectiveness of
internal control and the sufficiency of external and internal

audits.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2008, the
Audit Committee has held four meetings to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted, discuss and
evaluate internal control procedures, risk management
and financial reporting matters. It also ensures that the
Group complies with all applicable laws and regulations.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

HESBRE
Number of

meetings attended

Dokl gmms . AT@T Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp 4/4
AT B B Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 4/4
F®BX Wong Kon Man, Jason 4/4
EEIR Lo Chi Chung, William 3/4
EBEREEETENEREZE HeaRESs After each Audit Committee meeting, the Chairman of the
eeH NI EEERSHEIARABNERE Audit Committee will present a report to the Board which
H WREESERHRE - AHHEZREZE highlights any significant issues discussed in the meeting
GRITHBE [MEILEAERRNIBES for the Board's information and consideration. To assist
NEIR BT -FKT - ARiFEFIR M the Audit Committee to carry out its duties, the Process

HETIERENERKE

TABER B
AEZLZES mﬁﬁ?m)é%

TtXEAREERES

CERBRERZEEN _TT—FNIL ' B
HBHESFRERTEEEXBEFLOR
B - 3B E RS M B M E R E 2 B EIATED
MEETHREERR

Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee was
formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and performing internal
audit. Internal audit reports will be directly sent to the

Audit Committee periodically.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established in
2001 to help directors identify and assess business
risks. Corresponding strategies are formulated and risk
management system is implemented to prevent and

manage market and operational risks.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive Management Committee was established
in 2005 with written terms of reference to operate as
a general management committee under the authority
of the Board. Currently, the Executive Management
Committee comprises seven executive directors, namely
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman of the Executive
Management Committee), Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas,
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Mr. Lee
Koon Hung, Dr. Fok Ting Yeung, James and Ms. Luk Chui
Yung, Judith (appointed on 7th June, 2007).

SHARE OPTION COMMITTEE

The Share Option Committee was established in 1996 with
written terms of reference to deal with issues regarding
any grant of share options under the Company’s share
option scheme. In any case, the grant of the Company’s
share options to any director or his associates requires the
approval of the Company’s independent non-executive
directors. The Share Option Committee comprises
two executive Directors, Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian
(Chairman of the Share Option Committee) and Mr. Lee

Koon Hung.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

For the year under review, the total remuneration in
respect of audit services and non-audit services provided
by the Company’s auditors are HK$1,680,000 and
HK$150,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s financial statements which give
a true and fair view. The statement of the auditors of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in “Independent Auditors’

Report” on page 48 of the annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for internal control
of the Group. The system of internal control is designed
to manage and eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-
committee was formed in 2002 to provide support to
frontline functions in improving business operations and
performing internal audit. A comprehensive policy and
standard governing the process improvement and internal
audit scope and workflow, authority and integrity of the
audit staff, was promulgated in September 2006. Internal
audit reports will be directly sent to the Audit Committee
periodically. After each Audit Committee meeting,
the Chairman of the Audit Committee will address
the significant internal audit findings for the Board’s

information and consideration.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries which cover the review of risk management
functions, the Company’s material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board
considered the internal control system effective and

adequate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhancing investor relationship
by increasing its transparency to the investor community.
Measures to keep investors informed of the Group’s latest
developments comprehensively and timely include posting
of press release and announcements on the Group's

website and e-mail news updates.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson Jp, aged 44, is the Chairman
of the Company and one of the founders of the Group.
He is responsible for the Group’s corporate planning and
financial management. He has been one of the members
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
since November 1996. He graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in
Science and later was awarded the degree of Doctor of
Philosophy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
received “The Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong”
awarded by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
September 1992 and was awarded as one of the “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons” in November 1997. He is the
Chairman of Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council, the
Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Productivity Council,
the Vice Chairman of PRD Council of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries and a member of The Hong Kong-
European Union Business Co-operation Committee. He is
the younger brother of Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, the
Managing Director of the Company and the husband of
Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive Director of the

Company.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, aged 46, is the Managing
Director of the Company and one of the founders of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall marketing and
sales strategies of the Group’s products. He has a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He has over twenty-three years of experience in
marketing electronic components and consumer electronic
products. He received “Advanced Technology Development
Award” of ” Capital Magazine's Outstanding Information
Technology and Financial Enterprise Awards” in August
2001. He is the elder brother of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson
Jp, the Chairman of the Company and the brother-in-law
of Mrs. Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, an Executive Director of

the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mrs. TAM Mui Ka Wai, Vivian, aged 40, is an Executive
Director of the Company. She joined the Group in February
1992 and is responsible for human resources management,
administrative matters and electronic publishing of the
Group. She has been one of the members of the Share
Option Committee of the Company since November 1996.
She has obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Training
and Human Resource Management from the University of
Leicester, United Kingdom, and has over eighteen years of
experience in management and administration. Mrs. Tam
is the wife of Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp, the Chairman of
the Company and the sister-in-law of Mr. Tam Wai Tong,

the Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Kazuhiro OTANI, aged 47, joined the Company as
Executive Director in April 1997. He is responsible for
OEM/ODM business in the Strategic Product Division,
corporate business planning and corporate sourcing
strategy of the Group. He graduated from the Kansai
University of Foreign Studies in Osaka, Japan with a
Bachelor of Arts in Foreign Languages, and has been
working for a Japanese electronics company for fourteen
years before he joined the Group. He has spent the
latter ten years in the Hong Kong office of this Japanese
company since 1987, being responsible for sales and

marketing of electronic components such as IC, LCD, etc.

Mr. LEE Koon Hung, aged 45, joined the Group in
1988 and was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in April 1998. He is responsible for the personal
communication products business of the Group. He has
been one of the members of the Share Option Committee
of the Company since April 2003. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with Higher Certificate

in Electronic Engineering and obtained a Bachelor’s
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

degree in Computer Science from Asia International Open
University and a Master of Science’s degree in Engineering
Business Management from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom. He has twenty-four years of experience
in product development. He is the husband of Ms. Luk

Chui Yung, Judith, an Executive Director of the Company.

Dr. FOK Ting Yeung, James, aged 59, joined the
Company as Executive Director in April 1999. He is
responsible for the Group’s strategic operations. He
holds a Bachelor of Science in Engineering and a Master
of Philosophy from the University of Hong Kong, and
a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from the University of
London. He has thirty-eight years of experience in many
areas, including academic research, industrial research,
production management, product development, consulting
and strategic business development. Before joining the
Group, he served Hong Kong Productivity Council for
thirteen years as Divisional Manager of Electronics Services
Division, Branch Director of Design and Automation
Branch and finally as Deputy Executive Director. He is
a member of the Advisory Committee on Electronic
Engineering of the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
the Advisory committee for the Knowledge Management
Research Centre of Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
the Council of the Hong Kong Association for the
Advancement of Science and Technology and the Executive
Committee of Manufacturing Enterprise Integration and

Innovation Association.

Ms. LUK Chui Yung, Judith, aged 41, joined the Group
in 1989 and was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in June 2007. She is responsible for the
electronic dictionary business in the Electronic Dictionary

Division of the Group. She graduated from the City
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

University of Hong Kong with a Higher Diploma in Business
Management. She has nineteen years of experience in
marketing & sales of consumer electronic products. She is
the wife of Mr. Lee Koon Hung, an Executive Director of

the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Chi Chung, William, aged 48, is a Non-
executive Director of the Company. He has been one of
the members of the Audit Committee of the Company
since April 2003. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He also holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. Prior
to joining the Group in July 1993, Mr. Lo has worked for
several major international corporations including IBM and
Siemens. He was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in November 1996 and resigned with effect
from April 2003 but remains as a Non-executive Director
of the Company. He is currently Group Senior Director
— Finance and Administration of Vitasoy International

Holdings Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YUNG Wing Ki, Samuel MH, JP aged 50, Certified
Financial Planner CM, Registered Financial Consultant,
Chartered Financial Practitioner, is a Senior District
Director of American International Assurance Company
(Bermuda) Limited. He is also the Hong Kong and
Macau Chair of International Association of Registered
Financial Consultants. He was awarded the International

EMBA from the Hong Kong University of Science and
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Technology. He joined the Company as Independent Non-
executive Director in January 1995 and has been one of
the members of the Audit Committee since March 1999.
He has over twenty-six years of experience in insurance
and received “The Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Award” in November 1994. He was the Chairman of The
Outstanding Young Persons’ Association (2000-2002), the
President of The Life Underwriter Association Hong Kong
(1991), the President of the General Agents and Managers
Association of Hong Kong (1995-1996), the Co- Chairman
of the Asia Pacific Life Insurance Council (1996-1997)
and the International Committee Chairman of GAMA
International (1997-1999). He is a Council Member of
Kwai Tsing District Council. He is a Council Member and
a Co-Convenor of Independent Non-executive Directors
Committee of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
the Founding President of Hong Kong Professionals and
Senior Executives Association. He also sits in a number
of non-governmental organizations and Government

committees as either chairman or committee member.

Mr. HO Kwok Shing, Harris, aged 48, is the director
of G2B Company Limited. He joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director in January 1995. He
has been the member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Audit Committee of the Company since November
1996 and March 1999 respectively. He has obtained a
Diploma in Journalism from the Shue Yan University and a
Master's degree in Business Administration from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He has over twenty-five years

of experience in marketing consumer electronic products.

Mr. WONG Kon Man, Jason, aged 44, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee in September 2004. He

has been a member of the Remuneration Committee of
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

the Company since January 2005. He graduated from The
University of Hawaii with a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration majoring in Accounting. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over thirteen years of experience in accounting
and auditing. At present, Mr. Wong is the Managing

Director of Fortune Capital Group Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Masakatsu TSUJI, aged 70, is the Deputy Managing
Director — Manufacturing of the Group. He has extensive
experience in manufacturing of electronic products such
as personal computers and personal digital assistants. Prior
to joining the Group in July 1999, he worked for a famous
Japanese electronics company as a senior management
staff for thirty-eight years and has considerable overseas
working experience in United States, Korea and other

Southeast Asian countries.

Mr. LI Chi Hung, Francis, aged 50, is the Executive
Director, Marketing and Business Development of Group
Sense PDA Limited and Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited,
subsidiaries of the Group. He holds a Master's degree
in Business Administration from University of East Asia.
Prior to joining the Group in December 2003, he has
more than twenty years of experience in marketing and

manufacturing of consumer electronic products.

Mr. CHAN Ho Bun, Steve, aged 47, is the General
Manager of the Group’s Strategic Product Division.
He graduated from University of Birmingham, United
Kingdom with a Bachelor of Science in Computer Science.
He has over twenty-two years of experience in the field of
electronics and computer products. He joined the Group
in 1993.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, jointly-controlled
entities and associates are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19

respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 50.

No interim dividend was paid during the year and the
Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend
to shareholders for the year ended 31st March, 2008. The
retention of the profit of the Group as at 31st March,
2008 was HK$79,791,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st March, 2008:

(i) The Group’'s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 30% and

75%, respectively of the Group’s total revenue.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 9% and 33%,
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases (not
including purchases of items which are of capital

nature).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(Continued)

According to the understanding of the directors, none of
the directors, their associates or any shareholders who
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital
had any interest in the five largest customers nor the five

largest suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired leasehold
improvement of approximately HK$2 million, furniture,
fixtures and equipment of approximately HK$9 million,
plant and machinery of approximately HK$3 million and

toolings and moulds of approximately HK$10 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set

out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st March, 2008, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES (Continued)

amended), amounted to HK$40,536,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$409,710,000, may be distributed in the form of fully

paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to

the date of this report were:
Executive directors:

Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (Chairman)

Tam Wai Tong, Thomas (Managing Director)

Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian

Kazuhiro Otani

Lee Koon Hung

Fok Ting Yeung, James

Luk Chui Yung, Judith (appointed on 7th June, 2007)

Non-executive director:

Lo Chi Chung, William

Independent non-executive directors:

Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp

Ho Kwok Shing, Harris

Wong Kon Man, Jason

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, Mr. Kazuhiro Otani, Dr. Fok

Ting Yeung, James and Mr. Wong Kon Man, Jason retire

and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS” SERVICE
CONTRACTS (Continued)

All non-executive directors have been appointed for a

term of no more than one year.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel
MH, Jp, Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris and Mr. Wong Kon
Man, Jason, an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”) and considers the independent non-

executive directors to be independent.
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EERE R ER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
RZZEZENF=ZA=+—0 RBEIZIHFKEH At 31st March, 2008, the interests of the directors and
BB E352M8 it 2 B MATE - kiR their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
EFHHRBMESEIOMEEBESTHTESLSRS the Company and its associated corporations (within
ZZESFAI([Z2ESFA]) MAR R RE B the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
ERGFBRARIFRR  SEERESE Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register
BMBALHEEARINSHBHELNR(EE maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO
RBEHRHE GO EXVELR) 2 i & i8R AR or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
M REZIT Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were

as follows:

FEEERROEE (F8)

Number of ordinary shares held (long position)

HERTRE

EEtE AR RGER HipE R ZEDH
EEpE Nature Personal Family Other #%E % of issued
Name of director of interests interests interests interests Total share capital
BEFATEL Mi—k= 26,000,000 - 537,877,118 563,877,118 47.08
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Notes 1 & 2
BEX M#—k= 29,000,000 - 537,877,118 566,877,118 47.33
Tam Wai Tong, Thomas Notes 1 & 2
SRR it — 2,300,000 - 537,877,118 540,177,118 45.10
Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian Note 1
RAHE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.17
Kazuhiro Otani
F Bk M= 1,676,000 - - 1,676,000 0.14
Lee Koon Hung Note 3
ERER W= 550,000 - - 550,000 0.05
Luk Chui Yung, Judith Note 3
BELH 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000 0.24

Lo Chi Chung, William
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Notes:

1. The 537,877,118 shares are registered in the name of
Earnmill Holdings Limited, a company ultimately beneficially
owned by The Samson 1992 Trust and The Thomas
1992 Trust in equal shares. The Samson 1992 Trust is a
discretionary trust, the discretionary beneficiaries of which
include Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mrs. Tam Mui Ka
Wai, Vivian (spouse of Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP). The
Thomas 1992 Trust is a discretionary trust, the discretionary
beneficiaries of which include Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
and Mrs. Tam Ng Lai Yuen, Jocelyn (spouse of Mr. Tam
Wai Tong, Thomas). Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP, Mrs. Tam
Mui Ka Wai, Vivian and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas, being
directors, are directors of Earnmill Holdings Limited.

2. Included above is the 20,000,000 shares which are jointly
owned by Mr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai
Tong, Thomas.

3. Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith is the spouse of Mr. Lee Koon
Hung. Pursuant to section 344 of the SFO, as both of Mr.
and Mrs. Lee are directors, their respective interest will not
be aggregated for disclosure purpose.

The interests of the directors and their associates in the
share options granted by the Company are set out in the

section “Share Options” in the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2008, none
of the directors or their associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined
in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share
option schemes and valuation of options are set out in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the

Company during the year ended 31st March, 2008.
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Name of shareholder

Earnmill Holdings Limited
DJE Investment S.A.
Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG

Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT

Wiz

1. ZERERIXEESBEZESFESIE
BEEMER -

2. DIJE Investment SAfEAIZREKIE - IREEHE
H72,284,0000% 8% 15 ° DJE Investment S.A.Z
81% &z JyEDr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG#E
%l o fDr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AGZ68.5%
7z B BDr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT
%) o A1tk » DJE Investment S.A., Dr Jens
Ehrhardt Kapital AGMDr. Jens Alfred Karl
EHRHARDTE A sk R 1E A L SR s o

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st March, 2008, the register of substantial
shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO shows that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued capital

of the Company:

FREERROHE (&)

Number of HERTREAZES L

ordinary shares held % of issued
(Long Position) share capital
537,877,118 4491

(Kfit—) (Note 1)

72,284,000 6.04
(#aE=) (Note 2)

72,284,000 6.04
(#a=) (Note 2)

72,284,000 6.04
(#a=) (Note 2)

Notes:

1. The shareholding is also included in the “Directors’ Interests
in Securities” disclosed above.

2. DIJE Investment S.A. held 72,284,000 shares as an
investment manager. DJE Investment S.A. was 81%
controlled by Dr. Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG, which was in
turn 68.5% controlled by Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT.
Therefore, DJE Investment S.A., Dr Jens Ehrhardt Kapital AG
and Dr. Jens Alfred Karl EHRHARDT were all interested or
deemed to be interested in such shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31st March, 2008, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Company’s directors throughout the
year ended 31st March, 2008.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
on terms no less exactly than the required standard set
out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry
of the directors, all directors have complied with, the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the financial year ended 31st March, 2008.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises independent non-
executive directors, Mr. Yung Wing Ki, Samuel MmH, Jp
(Chairman), Mr. Ho Kwok Shing, Harris, and Mr. Wong
Kon Man, Jason and a non-executive director, Mr. Lo Chi
Chung, William.



EEgRE (F)
Report of the Directors (Contd)

BEREEE (H)

RARER BELEZEECEITHREE
J& R #93.75% - R af AN B TR AN G AT
RAREREK ABEERARMBERSE
cEBRZBGCENBE_ZTZTNF=A
=T BHLEFEZEE-

lﬂl}

BB

EHeBERAGAMITIR ST FEHA

RABIZEE  MEFEELKEMER

PRAZAR QB ZEAD AE R A b EE 2=
e RRARRBE_ZEZTN\F=A=+—H

FFEZHBRRARKGTMERAE

1% o K G 5T RD B P  PO ARQ Rl FE JE AR R

BFAGLER MBESEATNER BEE
EELT o

EEEGm
ERZEE T ATe+
E:

B
—EENFLATNR

S (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings
with 93.75% attendance to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discuss
internal control and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the annual results for the year
ended 31st March, 2008.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditors of the
Company in 2006 and Ernst & Young were appointed
by the directors to fill the casual vacancy so arising. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008
were audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young who will retire but,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp

Chairman

Hong Kong
18th July, 2008
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To the shareholders of
Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Group Sense
(International) Limited set out on pages 50 to 186, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Auditors’ responsibility (Contfinued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
18th July, 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-FF\F=A=+-ALEE
For the year ended 31 March 2008

50

—EENE —EELF
2008 2007
HiaF FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
'ON REVENUE 5 940,732 1,237,317
5 A AR Cost of sales (763,231) (954,096)
EF Gross profit 177,501 283,221
H A YA R ez Other income and gains 5 35,913 26,621
$HE MDA Selling and distribution costs (50,256) (54,942)
TR Administrative expenses (92,504) (97,146)
o RSN Research and development expenses (82,624) (74,224)
= Other expenses (3,109) (4,178)
B & A A Finance costs 7 (54) (178)
E(5 & 18 - Share of losses of :
HEESZFEE Jointly-controlled entities (1,094) -
iR N Associates (352) (1,393)
BADER, (F8) PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6 (16,579) 77,781
HIE Tax 10 1,684 (17,873)
EEERR,(FE) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (14,895) 59,908
FEARSE A, (F1E) Attributable to:
ANBIREFEA Equity holders of the Company 11 (15,250) 59,324
DERRE R Minority interests 355 584
(14,895) 59,908
B’E DIVIDENDS 12
 Hf Interim - 23,952
EEA Proposed final - 29,940
- 53,892
AATEBRRK EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
BEEEA ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EBEERERN, EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
(E518) COMPANY 13
HEAECENM) Basic (HK cents) (1.3) 5.0
B5E OBN) Diluted (HK cents) (1.3) 5.0
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SEEERER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

RZZBEENF=ZA=1+—H
As at 31 March 2008

—EENF ZTETEF
2008 2007
B &t FERT FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 14 102,799 102,856
T EREE Prepaid lease payments 15 17,644 8,976
IR RE 7 32 kAN Deferred development costs 16 5,859 6,774
HEEHEEER Interests in jointly-controlled entities 18 11,001 -
Bt 5 N B AE 2 Interests in associates 79 - 9,024
A HERE Available-for-sale investments 20 26,094 26,209
FEU BB iE A R BR 5K Amount due from a related company 21 1,587 -
EHZ® Long term deposits 22 2,186 3,490
IEREEELT Total non-current assets 167,170 157,329
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 23 115,833 170,899
W E 5 R Trade receivables 24 145,485 163,706
ENFIE - -Zek Prepayments, deposits and
H b JE AR X other receivables 25 44,451 51,772
JiE Uk B 5 B BR 3R Amounts due from associates 79 3,402 1,549
BATELRABR K Investments at fair value through
ZE profit or loss 26 41,532 41,211
PTESRTEA Derivative financial instruments 27 5,717 -
HeMReEEIEHR Cash and cash equivalents 28 252,165 272,885
MEEEET Total current assets 608,585 702,022
RBAEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEHE SR KL EMZIE  Trade and bills payables 29 106,517 166,826
HMEMBERKLEFTAME Other payables and accruals 30 52,537 56,342
JE S TR Tax payable 24,859 25,005
MESBMIE Derivative financial instruments 27 3,775 -
Mt RERITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing 37 2,594 -
Ve IR=REEE Total current liabilities 190,282 248,173
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 418,303 453,849
EERERRE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
&8fE LIABILITIES 585,473 611,178
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K=FT/\E=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2008

FRBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
RERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities
BEFE Net assets
iR HE EQUITY
EATREFEA Equity attributable to equity

AL R RE holders of the Company
BEITRA Issued capital
1 Reserves
BEARARE Proposed final dividend
LEBRRER Minority interests
i 1 4 58 Total equity

EEZE LA Tst
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp
EFE
Director

2008 /A& Annual Report

—EENEF
2008
B aF FET
Notes HK$’000
32 -
585,473
33 119,766
35 463,851
12 -
583,617
1,856
585,473
EERLE
Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EF
Director

—ETLF
2007
FAET
HK$'000

2,008

609,170

119,761
457,998
29,940

607,699
1,471

609,170
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meERESF X
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31 March 2008

RAAREREARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BRf Rt B57RE E4RE EiRE BEr YRR
Rx  EER  BE  RE SEER BE REEAT  RR £ BR BE4E
Share  Share  Capital Exchange Proposed
Issued premium  option redemption  Special fluctuation Retained final Minority Total

capital  account* reserve* reserve*  reserve* reserve*  profits* dividend Total interests  equity
bt TR TEn  TEn  TEn TR TEr  TEn TR TR TEn  TEn
Notes HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

(#33)  (h#s3) (i) (Hi##3500)
(note33)  (note33)  (note 33) (note 35(3))
N-EENENA-B At 1 April 2006 119,761 409,705 1,085 49 (60819 3311 89611 35,928 599,001 847 599,848
X E5|RUER Bxchange realignment and
FrgEERED fofal ncome and expense
HER recoqnised directly in equity - - - - -85y - -85 0 857
REREN Proft for the year - - - - - - 593 - 53U %4 59908
FEERERIAEE  Totalincome and expense
for the year - - - - - 8539 5934 - 67363 624 68487
WhiE 2 Bx Equitysettled share option
ahELH anangements ks - - 715 - - - - - 715 - 715
BNZESAERERS  Final 2006 dividend paid 12 - - - - - - - (3598 (3598 - (35928
BNZEECERERS  Interim 2007 duidend paid 12 - - - - - S - B - B
ZEELERERERE  Proposed final 2007 diidend 12 - - - - - - (9940 29940 - - -
AZEFLEZAZT-B AL3T March 2007 119761 409,705 1,800 49 (60819 11850 95043 29940 607,69 1471 609,170
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mERESE XK (F)
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HE-FF\F=A=+-ALEE
For the year ended 31 March 2008

FAERERAARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
i
BEf BB Ei3RE E4ED LERE EXRD ¥ YRR

Rx  RER B AE SRER EGER 86 REERT  RE HF  ER RE4E
Available-
for-sale

Share  Share  Capital investment  Exchange Proposed
Issued ~premium  option redemption  Special revaluation fluctuation  Retained final Minority Total

apital  account* reserve*  reserve*  reserve* reserve*  reserve*  profits*  dividend Total interests  equity
#iE TR TEn TEn TR TEn TR TEr TR TEn  TEn TEr TER
Notes  HKS'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

(W) (W) (h#) (353
(note 33)  (note 33 (note 39) (note 35(3)
AIEFLE A1 Apil 2007 119,761 409,705 1,800 419 (60,819) - 11850 95043 29940 607,699 14711 609,170
mA-H
THEEREZ  Change in fai value of
1TE%E avalable-forsale
Investment 20 - - - - - 12 - - - M - m
EREj| Exchange realignment - - - - - - 04 - - 049 30 20469
WERZLEE  Totalincome and
ERETR epense recognised
REN directly in equity - - - - - M 0439 - - 0,651 30 20681
KEREE  Lossfor the year - - - - - - - (15,250 - (1550 35 (14895)
KEERER  Totalincome and expense
it for the year - - - - - M 089 (1550 -5 w58
BHETHLE  Transfer to the income
REEEEZ  statement on disposal
Bax of available-forsale
investments 20 - - - - - 212) - - - 212) - 212
kh Issue of shares % 5 5 - - - - - - - 10 - 10
WRERRZEE Fquitysettled share
IWEZE  optionamangements 34 - - 61 - - - - - - 661 - 661
BRZZELE  Fingl 2007 dividend paid 12 - - - - - - - @) (29940 (29942 - (2998
7lRs
“ZE/\ERE  Proposed final 2008
ke diidend 1 - - - - - - - - - - - -
BZFENE A3 March 2008 119,766 409,710 2,461 49 (60,819) - W 799 - 583,617 185 585473
=R=1-H
* ZERBEROENGEREEEBEBRZE * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
& f#1463,851,0008 L (Z T T L F - of HK$463,851,000 (2007: HK$457,998,000) in the
457,998,000/ 7T ) ° consolidated balance sheet.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-FF\F=A=+-ALEE
For the year ended 31 March 2008

REXBCBRERE

Biana, (B8R)

HE

BB KA

FEIE KRS
EE

JEMREE N AR

RITABHA

BAFERABRE
ZEZHBHBA

AfEEREZ
B S HA

HEME  BHEK
wEEFHRE (HE
MERIN) 2 BB
(Wzk) - %8

HE-—FAHEERE
Z A FEH R

BATERAEBREK
ZHREZRVE
Yeat - JF R

N EERS
(Wgzk) - 3%
TETREE
TEERERE

BE-BENRER
Z Wz

&

BNEERE 2 ER

A FE 5 3% PR 7 5

e B E R AR
B
FEWE 7 B SURLE -
R

FERE
VARSRE S A+ 2 18 58
R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of losses of jointly-controlled
entities
Share of losses of associates
Bank interest income
Interest income from investments at
fair value through profit or loss
Dividend income from an available-
for-sale investment
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
(other than a leasehold property),
net
Net fair value gain on disposal of
an available-for-sale investment
Fair value gains on investments at
fair value through profit or loss,
net
Fair value losses/
(gains), net:
Derivative financial assets
Derivative financial liabilities
Gain on dilution of an interest in
an associate
Depreciation
Recognition of prepaid lease
payments
Amortisation of deferred
development costs
Impairment of amounts due
from associates
Impairment of trade receivables, net

Provision for inventories
Equity-settled share option expense

HiaF

Notes

(S

(S

(&)}

(o)}

ST
2008
FHT
HK$000

(16,579)
54
1,094
352

(8,157)

(2,689)

(215)

87

(212)

(321)

(6,668)

3,775

(3,073)
31,264

416
5,046

159
4,697

12,050
661

21,741

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

—ETEF
2007
FET
HK$'000

77,781
178
1,393
(10,489)
(2,684)

(1,440)

(188)

(471)

29,203
251
3,818

3,928
330

16,067
715

118,392
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FEREMER (&)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont'd)
BE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2008

JE U Bt i N R BR 3R
3 hn
FERL,(Em)
B E B RIUR D
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FEWBR BB A (3 hn)
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Increase in amounts due from
associates

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease /(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease in trade and bills payables

Decrease in other payables and accruals

Decrease in derivative financial assets
Increase in an amount due from a
related company

Cash generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxes paid

Net cash inflow from operating
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Interest received from investments at
fair value through profit or loss

Dividend income from an available-
for-sale investment

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Purchase of prepaid lease payment

Additions to deferred development
costs

Proceeds from disposal of available-
for-sale investments

Investment in an associate

Investment in a jointly-controlled entity

Decrease in long term deposits

Net cash outflow from investing
activities

14

15

16

ST
2008
FHT
HK$000

(2,012)
43,016
13,524

7,512
(60,309)

(3,805)
951

(1,587)

19,031

(189)
(281)

18,561

8,157
2,689
215

(23,716)

(8,34;)
(4,131)
327
(35(_))

1,304

(23,849)

—ETEF
2007
FET
HK$'000

(1,609)
(5,483)
20,961

(10,624)
(17,017)

(2,117)

102,503

(2,380)
(362)

99,761

10,489
2,684
1,440

(21,277)

750

(3,428)

1,775
(10,413)

3,488

(14,492)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Cont'd)
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For the year ended 31 March 2008

MEXBZBRERE

BT
BB
Bk E
& sR1T B R
EERITER

MEXK RS
pifeepecs |

®#n, GRd) B8R
FEYrEeRES
Z(EIER
N IR 5 S S K
R

FRZEATRRE
%EH1AE

RERMEBEER
G155 4T

Be RBTEH
WARAE DR =EA R
B8 2 S 2
it

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Issue of shares

Finance costs

Dividends paid

New bank loan

Repayment of bank loan

Net cash outflow from financing
activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

—EENF

2008

k23 FET
Notes HK$'000

10

(54)

(29,942)
5,384

(2,790)

(27,392)

(32,680)
272,885

11,960

252,165
28

66,982

185,183

252,165
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—ETEF
2007
FET
HK$'000

(178)
(59,880)

(60,058)

25,211
246,999

675

272,885

66,594

206,291

272,885
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EERER

Balance Sheet

RZEENF=ZA=+—H
As at 31 March 2008

—EENEF —ETEF
2008 2007
HiaF FET THET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
APEERNGIE s Interests in subsidiaries 17 764,266 761,381
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE UL BT B R Bl BR 3R Due from subsidiaries 17 3,000 29,940
TR FRIE - e MEM  Prepayments, deposits and
JiE g BR 3R other receivables 25 292 162
B e MIRTTHE % Cash and bank balances 28 89 78
MEVEEEER Total current assets 3,381 30,180
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEMBRALEAE Other payables and accruals 30 514 468
JRE 1 B K Tax payable 897 1,086
mEBBEEERE Total current liabilities 1,411 1,554
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,970 28,626
EEHERABER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 766,236 790,007
ERBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEAST B B A B BR X Due to subsidiaries 17 193,344 187,707
BEFE Net assets 572,892 602,300
% R EQUITY
BT Issued capital 33 119,766 119,761
15 Reserves 35(b) 453,126 452,599
BEAERE Proposed final dividend 12 - 29,940
i 7 42 58 Total equity 572,892 602,300
EREEETATH: EBERERELELE
Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas
EZE EH
Director Director
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Notes o the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2.1
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BE (BB BARAR (TARA]DZ—
MR EREIMALZERAR - AR
BlzTEEEMHURBEFRLASR
AHBEMRKBARREERESE -
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EREERELY L ETES TEAE
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mEERE

WEMBHRRDIBBEEL G AGR
2 BBMGEREEN(TEBYBRE
EAD(ETEREEGER ([FE
SRTEA]) k) FEERRETR
AIRBERBRAGII 2 REREMREL -
BRETHHRLERE  RAOFERLAR
SR ZBERTES R T AR FER
BN WEMBRRVIRE L RALR
o WEPHREHNBTLIINE - b5
BERN - MESHRARBERZOT

ﬁo

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 6th Floor, Enterprise Place,
No. 5 Science Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science

Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
design, manufacture and sale of a range of electronic
handheld products, primarily electronic dictionaries,
smartphones and personal digital assistants, and
manufacture of original design manufacturing
("ODM") products.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain available-for-sale investments, investments
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2008 JAF K& Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

(22T \F=ZA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2008. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and

net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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HIEFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and

revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements. Except for in certain cases,

giving rise to new and revised accounting policies and

additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and

revised standards and interpretations have had no

material effect on these financial statements.

HKFRS 7

HKAS 1 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Capital Disclosures

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting

and Impairment

HKFRS 2 — Group and

Treasury Share Transactions
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new revised

HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

This standard requires disclosures that enable

users of the financial statements to evaluate the

significance of the Group’s financial instruments
and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those financial instruments. The new
disclosures are included throughout the financial
statements. While there has been no effect on
the financial position or results of operations of
the Group, comparative information has been
included/revised where appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of

Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures”

This amendment requires the Group to make
new disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are shown in note 41 to

the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE_ZZ)\F=ZA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

22 BT REBIT 2B RV B R

EEAzE (&)

()0 BB (AR EREREZES) (¢) HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 “Scope of HKFRS 2"
—RRESR /BB FHRETER
F2RZEHEIE ]
ZRERT AEEEEMALRHEE This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be
o fmREEEBEHEAE o2 IE applied to any arrangement in which the Group
WE SR AEBEAERERA cannot identify specifically some or all of the
TESEAEBBE(RAEBEREL goods or services received, for which equity
EVBEAEE)(EARE mME instruments are granted or liabilities (based on
REBLUFERAREER TR a value of the Group's equity instruments) are
ELXaENAFE  BERASRE incurred by the Group for a consideration, and
B AR E ERIE25E - AR A which appears to be less than the fair value
ERBEARRRNEBLRBETEM of the equity instruments granted or liabilities
AEBRERERTHEITE  ZRE incurred. As the Company has only issued
HBmRU By E equity instruments to the Group’s employees
for identified services provided in accordance
with the Group’s share option scheme, the
interpretation has had no effect on these
financial statements.
d) &% (BERFEREREZES) (d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 “Reassessment of Embedded

—REBER/HMAATLETLTAZ
B

EAES %ﬁ%ﬁd%;ﬂﬁmkimilﬂm
BAETIANIFANEY  RAK
mE ’/ZBZE/\%’JJZ’JEE—?%E%\H#
ﬁ%ﬁlﬂi\ﬁﬁﬂﬁmiiﬂ IAED

Derivatives”

This interpretation requires that the date to
assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract

and accounted for as a derivative is the date that

REARREHEFIR S REKNR the Group first becomes a party to the contract,
HEEFE A SENTE AR AEE with reassessment only if there is a change to
WHEBHFSHDHOBRARITE the contract that significantly modifies the cash

TH  ZRBYUWBRRLEXE -

flows. As the Group has no embedded derivative
requiring separation from the host contract,
the interpretation has had no effect on these

financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(e) HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 “Interim Financial Reporting

()

and Impairment”

The Group has adopted this interpretation
as of 1 January 2007, which requires that an
impairment loss recognised in a previous interim
period in respect of goodwill or an investment
in either an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale or a financial asset carried at
cost is not subsequently reversed. As the Group
had no impairment losses previously reversed in
respect of such assets, the interpretation has had
no impact on the financial position or results of

operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 “HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury

Share Transactions”

This interpretation requires arrangements
whereby an employee is granted rights to the
Group’s equity instruments, to be accounted for
as an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group
acquires the instruments from another party, or
the shareholders provide the equity instruments
needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also addresses the
accounting for share-based payment transactions
involving two or more entities within the Group.
As the Group currently has no such transactions,
the interpretation is unlikely to have any financial

impact on the Group.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations'

Business Combinations?

Operating Segments’

Presentation of Financial
Statements’
Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements?

Puttable Financial
Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation’

Service Concession
Arrangements?

Customer Loyalty
Programmes*

HKAS 19 — The Limit
on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

July, 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January, 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

July, 2008
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For the year ended 31st March, 2008
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 2 clarifies the definition of
“vesting conditions” and specifies the accounting
treatment of “cancellations” by the counterparty to a

share-based arrangement.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) amended the definitions of a
business and a business combination and additional
guidance was added for identifying when a group of
assets constitutes a business. It also clarifies how the
acquirer makes any classifications, designations or
assessments for the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed in a business combination.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based on
information about the components of the entity that
is available to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to the segments
and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates, and

revenue from the Group’s major customers.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 1 has been revised to affect the presentation
of owner changes in equity and comprehensive
income. The revised standard will use “statement of
financial position” and “statement of cash flows”
to replace the titles “balance sheet” and “cash
flow statement”, and in making reference to these
two statements within a complete set of financial
statements. In addition, this standard introduces the
statement of comprehensive income: it presents all
items of income and expense recognised in profit
or loss, together with all others items of recognised
income and expense, either in one single statement,

or in two linked statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation
of borrowing costs when such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. As the Group's
current policy for borrowing costs aligns with the
requirements of the revised standard, the revised
standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on

the Group.

HKAS 27 has been revised to add new term “non-
controlling interest” to replace the term “minority
interest”, and required the changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in the loss of control must be accounted for as equity
transactions. It also specifies how an entity measures
any gain or loss arising on the loss of control of a

subsidiary.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments permitted a range
of entities to recognise their capital as equity rather
than as financial liabilities, and required additional
disclosures for puttable financial instruments
classified as equity. The amendment reinforces that
this is a limited scope exception to the definition of a
financial liability and no analogies should be made to

these requirements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-
to-private service concession arrangements to
recognise the consideration received or receivable in
exchange for the construction services as a financial
asset and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms
of the contractual arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12
also addresses how an operator shall apply existing
HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights
arising from service concession arrangements by
which a government or a public sector entity grants a
contract for the construction of infrastructure used to
provide public services and/or for the supply of public

services.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits
granted to customers as part of a sales transaction
are accounted for as a separate component of the
sales transaction. The consideration received in the
sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty
award credits and the other components of the sale.
The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits
is determined by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability

is otherwise extinguished.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit
under HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”, on the amount
of a refund or a reduction in future contributions
in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can be
recognised as an asset, in particular, when a minimum

funding requirement exists.

The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs
in the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2008. The Group has already commenced
an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position and presentation of consolidated

financial statements.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly or

indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’'s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and

the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture
entity and the basis on which the assets are to
be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and
losses from the joint venture's operations and any
distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms

of the joint venture agreement.
A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture; or

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly
or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of
the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over the

joint venture.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

Jointly-controlled entities are joint ventures that
are subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the

economic activity of the jointly-controlled entities.

The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities
are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities are included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entity is included
as part of the Group’s interests in jointly-controlled

entities.

The results of jointly-controlled entities are included
in the Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in jointly-controlled entities are treated as
non-current assets and are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.
Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in
which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant

influence.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is
included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interests in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates is included as part

of the Group’s interests in associates.

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in associates are treated as non-current
assets and are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
and a jointly-controlled entity represent the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of

acquisition.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially
measured at cost and subsequently at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. In the case on
associate and jointly-controlled entity, goodwill is
included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than
as a separately identified asset on the consolidated
balance sheet.

Goodwill is included in the carrying amount thereof,
rather than as a separately identified asset on the
consolidated balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than

goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than

goodwill (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has

joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of

any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment, and where the cost of the
item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a

replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter

of the lease

terms and 2%
Leasehold improvements 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment  25%

Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Tooling and moulds 50%
Motor vehicles 25%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the

parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are

reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income

statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on clearly-defined projects to
develop new products is capitalised and deferred
only when the Group can demonstrate the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to
complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how
the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when

incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the estimated commercial
lives of the underlying products of three years,
commencing from the date when the products are

put into commercial production.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the leasehold
land and buildings as a finance lease in property,

plant and equipment.
Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction

costs.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the

balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include the financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on investments held
for trading are recognised in the income statement.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policy set out for

“Revenue recognition” below.

2008 JAF R & Annual Report

81



% (BEKR) AR A7 Group Sense (International) Limited

e BB HRME (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

BE_ZT\F=ZA=1+—RHILLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2AFESTHHEBE (B]) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

82

RERHMEBMEE (&)

B R WA

ERREWERBE B E LA EENK
TRMAETEMSYERENITES
MEE - ZFEENERNBER N
LB B R 1R IR B SH R AN DI R o B SH AR
AAREMRETESREE BERAE
RARRRGRAZERBO ZER -
BRBEDENER R BRI LR
BER AN S BEEERERER -

AR ERMEE

b ESREEZF LM RIFLT
Z B E Z 30 A 4t i 6 S 3F 0 MR
HiMBZIFTESREE - VIHHER
‘- -AHLESREEARFEAE
Ba ADHES ZBARR  EEXR
BERBUHERNEESZ N ERETER
B mMERRFTED (AEREARFT 2
5 BABERA - FTUE 2 7.8 KK
B RFE R ESWAZ®R  XRE
ITX[WMABBIMBEZBRRERRBRER
BRRBITEMEB Al - ZFREZHE
PRESZER  IRBHERAERRIA
HEhESHMEEZRERBE] - Al
HhEREEGHFERETER -

2008 /A& Annual Report

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities
that are designated as available for sale or are not
classified in any of the other two categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the income statement.
Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as “Other
income” in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement as “Impairment losses on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
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(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such securities are stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the
close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair
value is determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation

models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired.
Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no

realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement, to the
extent that the carrying value of the asset does not

exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be
able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised

when they are assessed as uncollectible.
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment

losses on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the income statement, is transferred
from equity to the income statement. A provision
for impairment is made for available-for-sale equity
investments when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost
or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In addition, the
Group evaluates other factors, such as price volatility.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through the income

statement.

Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instrument can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised in the income statement.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third

party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of
a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair

value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing

involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value

of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

BRBHEEAARZSHAE (BEHRER

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including

RATER) interest-bearing bank borrowings)

CRHREEERENESRRARENE Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
B HEMEMEREZR AN BIEITEREL other payables and an interest-bearing bank
ERAFEREER SRR BEE A borrowing are initially stated at fair value less directly
BT BRI BHEKN A E - MR H attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
FEIWAEKXR - AR ATIER - BT measured at amortised cost, using the effective
BRXRBERIEEKA] AR - interest method unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. The related interest expense is recognised within

“finance costs” in the income statement.
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Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as

well as through the amortisation process.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains
an embedded derivative that would need to be

separately recorded.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
guarantee contract, except when such contract
is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount determined in accordance with HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to

completion and disposal.
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as

to use.

2008 JAF R & Annual Report

91



e UK M (&)

% (BEKR) AR A7 Group Sense (International) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

BE_ZT\F=ZA=1+—RHILLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2QAXTEESTHEME (F)

B#E

MERNBEFTHEELRB AT LML
B MERETAEFSERKERRT
b BRZEETZz8EENEGE Al
R -

ERBEFEEAN  CHIANBEEE
RIEHBBEEMFTORKRLEREE
AeRE- - BRERIMELNER
BRI ABRBERAOBERAR

AEBERETERMIERZERRE
BIORBEEEBELRTOEE LR
BKFHER - WRRIRARE (WER) -

i 18 8t

PRERERmEMMELERIE - EHRTS
REZRER S EHBRER — 2 M
KT FRMHEZERESRERCEE - A
FERE R TR ©

92 2008 JAF & Annual Report

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present value
at the balance sheet date of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values

as appropriate.
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement, or
in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in

the same or a different period directly in equity.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
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where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction,

I affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and
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associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet

date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.
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Revenue is recognised when it is probable that

the economic benefits will flow to the Group and

when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the

following bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

service fee income, when the services have been

rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right

to receive payment has been established.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity

instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 34 to the financial
statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions,
no account is taken of any performance conditions,
other than conditions linked to the price of the shares

of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which
the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of

modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of

earnings or loss per share.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions
of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and
has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards
granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested
by 1 April 2006 and to those granted on or after 1
April 2006.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF

Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 14% of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheet, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised

as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a

liability when they are proposed and declared.
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when

the fair value was determined.



S (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

e UK M (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

BE_ZT\F=ZA=1+—RHILLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

2AFESTHHEBE (B]) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

5 s (48D

HETEBINMBRARE —RARZEHQ
A2 B RBITTIAINER - REH
A ZECEZEERABREERE
AzEXMERANRRZEEE M
REFLEZBRREAFEZ INEFY
ERME DB - RELZERZ8EG
ANEL R - HEBIERE - RiER
TRERBEZARSINEEABIRELER
ERERTARGER -

2

BERHRERERMS - BINTEBRT
ZHREREDINRS R A RERZE
KEREBT - BINHBRBRFERNE
EZREERSREAFAZINEFY
[ERME QBT °

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and one of jointly-controlled entity are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date, and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates

for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment property and

prepaid lease payment

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property
is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely

independently of the other assets held by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

(@) Impairment of non-financial assets other than

goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at each reporting date. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the

estimated impairment provision previously made.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-
for-sale and recognises movements of their fair
values in equity. When the fair value declines,
management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there
is an impairment that should be recognised
in the income statement. At 31 March 2008,
no impairment losses have been recognised
for available-for-sale assets (2007: Nil). The
carrying amount of available-for-sale assets was
HK$26,094,000 (2007: HK$26,209,000).
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Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated
loss arising from the inability of its customers to
make the required payments. The Group makes
its estimates based on the ageing of its trade
receivable balances, customers’ creditworthiness,
and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its customers was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making
the allowance and its future results would be

affected.

Fair value of unquoted equity securities

The unquoted equity instruments have been
valued based on the expected cash flows
discounted at current rates applicable for items
with similar terms and risk characteristics. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates
about expected future cash flows and discount

rates and hence are subject to uncertainty.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f)

(@)

(h)

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two
years on certain products and undertakes to
repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. Significant judgement is required
when determining the warranty expenses. The
Group estimates the warranty expenses based
on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24
months. Where the warranty expenses incurred
are different from the original provision, such
difference would impact the income statement
in the period in which the additional warranty
expenses are incurred.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions are
required in determining income tax provisions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications
of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development costs in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits. At
31 March 2008, the best estimate of the carrying
amount of capitalised development costs was
HK$5,859,000 (2007: HK$6,774,000).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary

segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured
and managed separately according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers
products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other
business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(a) the electronic handheld products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of

electronic handheld products;

(b) the ODM products segment designs,

manufactures and sells ODM products; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises
corporate income, expense, asset and liability

items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed

to the segments based on the location of the assets.
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4. DEER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) X%2H8 (a) Business segments
TREINAEEREEZE-ZTZTNF The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss)
FZETEH+F=RA=1+— Eljtif and certain asset, liability and expenditure
ZEBIEHORA EF(EE) information for the Group’s business segments
LETEE BEMHAZER - for the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

gt R4 R &
ETEm tEER  LhERAM GEAE

Electronic Corporate
BEZ-_ZZN\E Year ended handheld ODM and
=A=+—-HLFE 31 March 2008 products products others Consolidated
FET FAET FAET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PEBA Segment revenue:

HETHIREP Sales to external customers 601,337 339,395 - 940,732
TREE Segment results (3,982) (25,547) 6,329 (23,200)
FIBREWAT  Interest and dividend income

Koz and unallocated gains 11,230
AOEZH Unallocated expenses (3,109)
N Finance costs (54)
JEMARZESIEE  Share of losses of jointly-

B controlled entities (1,094)
EIREEZNBIEIE  Share of losses of associates (352)
W AIEE Loss before tax (16,579)
A Tax 1,684
rEEER Loss for the year (14,895)
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4. DEEHR (E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) XH7oE(H)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

gt RH4RE
ETER fEER  LERHA REBE
Electronic Corporate
BE_ZZ)N\§ Year ended handheld ODM and
=A=t—-HLFE 31 March 2008 products products others Consolidated
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEHAE Assets and liabilities
NEEE Segment assets 281,367 148,324 73,343 503,034
AREEHEEEST  Interests in jointly-controlled
entities 11,001 - - 11,001
FOWEE Unallocated assets 261,720
BELE Total assets 775,755
PEEE Segment liabilities 106,211 52,329 3,775 162,315
APEEE Unallocated liabilities 27,967
wag Total liabilities 190,282
HitpEEH Other segment information:
WERE#E Depreciation and amortisation 25,172 8,585 - 33,757
APEITE Unallocated depreciation 2,969
36,726
BARAY Capital expenditure 16,698 5,852 8,344 30,894
AOBEAHEY Unallocated capital expenditure 5,647
36,541
HEWE - BE Loss on disposal of items of
FEEEZ property, plant and
BE 78 equipment, net 58 29 - 87
FEEE Provision for inventories 11,050 1,000 - 12,050
BB SRR Impairment of trade
B PR receivables, net 4,697 - - 4,697
BEMA N E#EE  Gain on dilution of an
ZWE interest in an associate 3,073 - - 3,073
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4. DEEHR (H)

(a) ¥% 28 (8

HE-_TTtF

ZA=t-HIEE

DA :
HETHREP

NERE

M2 R SRR
A Bl
AREX
RERA

FEBERAER

BiAna A
BB

RER RN
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Year ended
31 March 2007

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers

Segment results

Interest and dividend income

and unallocated gains
Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Share of losses of associates

Profit before tax

Tax

Profit for the year

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

£r
ETEM
Electronic
handheld
products
FET
HK$000

779,628

62,066

R &3
LEEmM

ODM
products
FET
HK$000

457,689

6,380

PEREM
Corporate
and

others
TET
HK$000

4,595

Consolidated
FHET
HK$'000

1,237,317

73,041

10,489

(4,178)

(178)

(1,393)

77,781
(17,873)

59,908
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4., 7 EER (H) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) ¥¥K2E(F) (a) Business segments (Continued)

2t R &3
BEfEM tEER  LEREML REBE

Electronic Corporate
HE_ZTTLF Year ended handheld ODM and
ZHA=1—HLEFE 31 March 2007 products products others  Consolidated
FEL FET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHRAE Assets and liabilities
NEEE Segment assets 333,451 170,105 67,420 570,976
N AR Interests in associates 9,024 - - 9,024
AOWEE Unallocated assets 279,351
BERE Total assets 859,351
PEEE Segment liabilities 172,462 46,840 - 219,302
xoEEE Unallocated liabilities 30,879
Baf Total liabilities 250,181
HibpBEH - Other segment information:
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 22,321 7,631 - 29,952
AOBHE Unallocated depreciation 3,320
33,272
BARRY Capital expenditure 19,458 4,067 - 23,525
ROMERHL Unallocated capital expenditure 1,180
24,705
HENE  BE Gain on disposal of items of
REEBER property, plant and
2 Wias equipment (123) (65) - (188)
FERE Provision for inventories 14,267 1,800 - 16,067
B E 5 IR Impairment of trade
WE - FE receivables, net 330 - - 330
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4. DEER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HESE (b) Geographical segments

TREWNAEEREE_ZZN\F The following tables present revenue and certain
F—EE+E=A=1+—HILEE asset and expenditure information for the
ZHESFENRALRE TEERS Group’s geographical segments for the years

HEH - ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

Hf
B4 E DS 1% B R RREE
Mainland  Other Asian North Middle

Hong Kong China markets America Europe East  Consolidated

&1 2:23 22 f&rx 1223 f&r 22
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000

HE-ZENE Year ended 31 March
ZR=T-ALER 2008

ARUA: Segment revenue:

HETHARP Sales 10 external customers 122,330 31,326 688,428 57,354 14,460 26,834 940,732
HfppEER Other segment information;

ARAE Seqment assets 449,877 294,462 31416 - - - 775,755

EAREY Capital expenditure 6,282 30,084 175 - - - 36,541
HE T3F Vear ended 31 March

ZAZt-ALER 2007

AEUA Segment revenue:
HETIAZP Sales to external customers 114,597 29,350 937330 44762 87,986 8292 1031317
EfABEN Other segment information:
HEEE Seqment assets 558,020 301,117 214 - - - 859,351
BARY Capital expenditure 5,418 19,287 - - - - 24,705
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5 WA~ HMW ARz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,

WARSERAKENERXE  IFAB
HEEMNERBEEFERERENER
ST B

represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts during the
year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

WA~ Bt A R WS T

follows:

—EEN\E ZETLHF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
A Revenue
HEGY Sale of goods 940,732 1,237,317
Hebug A Other income
RSB A Service fee income 12,246 5,270
IRITH BULA Bank interest income 8,157 10,489
ERAVEZABRR Interest income from investments at
ZIEEF BWA fair value through profit or loss 2,689 2,684
A EERER WA Dividend income from an available-
for-sale investment 215 1,440
Hh Others 6,107 6,001
29,414 25,884
W= Gains
NEEWZE (E5E) Fair value gains/(losses), net:
FEE
A ERE Available-for-sale investment
(RAHERESL) (transfer from equity on disposal) 212 -
BRAFELRABRK Investments at fair value through
ZIRE profit or loss 321 471
MESBMITHEEE Derivative financial assets 6,668 -
MESBMITERE Derivative financial liabilities (3,775) -
BE-BE AR R Gain on dilution of an interest
2 Wz in an associate 3,073 -
Hh Others - 266
6,499 737
35,913 26,621
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6. BADEF, (BR) 6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
AEBNFEA SN (BE) Mg/ The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after
(Gt A) T3&IA - charging/(crediting):

—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
k23 FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EHRFEKAR Cost of inventories sold 751,181 938,030
e Depreciation 14 31,264 29,203
TEfHHE & 058 2 R Recognition of prepaid lease
payments 15 416 251
HERFAEKAK Research and development costs:
[z 3o Dok of (4Rt Deferred development costs
(DN amortised 16 5,046 3,818
REEMX Current year expenditure 77,578 70,406
82,624 74,224

AT HREFEE Minimum lease payments under

HENKEEE operating leases in respect of
XA land and buildings 13,231 12,194
% 6 B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,680 1,550
EERMHAZ Employee benefit expense
(BEESEHe (including directors’
(K17£8)) : remuneration (note 8)):
MR EMF = Wages and salaries and
benefits in kind 190,809 186,064
VARR #E 2 1 2 18 5 Equity-settled share option
RS N expense 34 661 715
RIRET B R Pension scheme contributions 7,563 6,646
i BRIz R Less: Forfeited contributions (88) (68)
RRET &I FOFRE Net pension scheme
contributions* 7,475 6,578

198,945 193,357
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6. BAEF B8 (&) 6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (Continued)

—EENF —ETLF

2008 2007

B st FHET FET

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

E N EEE  HEE Foreign exchange differences, net (1,251) 288
JE LS BS & A R BR 5K Impairment of amounts due from

B associates 159 3,928
EUE 5 RFRE - Impairment of trade receivables,

FER net 4,697 330
FERE Provision for inventories 12,050 16,067
EmiIRERE Product warranty provision 500 500
HEWE BEKLEFE  Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of

HEB (HEWERIN) property, plant and equipment

ZEE () (other than a leasehold

FER property), net 87 (188)
* RN -TBENE=ZA=+—80 K&£H * At 31 March 2008, the Group had forfeited

contributions of HK$88,000 (2007: HK$68,000)
available to reduce its contributions to the pension
schemes in future years.

AR DA B R B R 2R R T EURRET
FME Rz 2R Y R88,000/8 7T (=
T :68,00087T) °

7. BMERAX 7. FINANCE COSTS
rEH
Group
—EEN\F —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FH&T
HK$°000 HK$'000
MRoFERNEEEEZ Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowing
Mt RRITEER R wholly repayable within five years 54 178
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8. EEM=

ARBERBBEXHMBERDAERE
HFEHHRA (T EHRED REFBRA
BHIEI6RAETREFANESHE I
N

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and

Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

is as follows:

KEE

Group
—EENEF —ETF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
e Fees 512 488

Hi< - Other emoluments:

e RMEEYA G Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,714 9,535
HRIME 2 e Performance related incentive payments - 112
EEEERRIERT Employee share option benefits 200 191
RRET B K Pension scheme contributions 345 304
11,259 10,142
11,771 10,630

RAFER  ETEFERRFALAKH
P HR (6 BR 75 JE 3 T AN 2 AE ST AR LA
IR TR BT RBE  E—FFBH
RERE MR T34 - ZFEERBR
BHORFEDRELARER] - YER
BEHAANESSBaRAER Mt A
REREEMBBRNEETDEER
EXHEEMERER -

2008 /A& Annual Report

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value
of such options which has been recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the consolidated financial
statements for the current year is included in the

above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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8. EEM= (&)

(a) BYFHTES

ERAFERNRBILIFRTES N

S (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

WHEEMT directors during the year were as follows:
—EENF —TELEF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Aok e= . A F4+  Yung Wing Ki, Samuel mH, Jp 128 122
] B A Ho Kwok Shing, Harris 128 122
FHX Wong Kon Man, Jason 128 122
384 366

RARFRLEFEBLIFATEES
NEMME (ZZZLF &) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2007: Nil).
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8. EEME (&) 8. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
(Continued)
(b) BITESER—FBTES (b) Executive directors and a non-executive
director

BER Bx%  REEL &I
e ENAE H8cRe RREEN  HBEX @3t

Salaries, Performance

allowances related  Employee Pension
and benefits incentive share option scheme Total
Fees inkind ~ payments benefits contributions remuneration

TAT FAT FAT FAT TAT FAT
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

ZEENE 2008
BITEE: Executive directors:
EEFATEL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,705 - - 60 2,765
BRZ Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,623 - - 60 2,683
EiEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 731 - 7 27 765
AAHE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,681 - 59 62 1,802
Tk Lee Koon Hung - 1,139 - 59 52 1,250
BERA Luk Chui Yung, Judith - 831 - 45 38 914
b Fok Ting Yeung, James - 1,004 - 30 46 1,080
- 10,714 - 200 345 11,259
FUTEE Non-executive director:
BTE Lo Chi Chung, William 128 - - - - 128
128 10,714 - 200 345 11,387
g2 2007
yES: Executive directors;
EERATEL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp - 2,695 40 - 60 2,795
BEE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas - 2,632 40 - 60 2,732
ElEEE Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian - 450 18 29 27 524
AATE Kazuhiro Otani - 1,661 - 65 61 1787
FrilE Lee Koon Hung - 1,113 - 65 51 1,229
EEE Fok Ting Yeung, James - 984 14 32 45 1,075
- 9,535 112 191 304 10,142
FanES: Non-executive director:
BTE Lo Chi Chung, William 122 - = - - 122
122 9,535 112 191 304 10,264
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8. EEM< (E) 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
(Continued)
RAFAN - WEEFFT LML HERE There was no arrangement under which a director
FRBEREEMME - waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

9. LEBAHESR 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
REAFRNRAEEaHEESFENE (= The five highest paid employees during the year
TEELF =R ES HMestERS included four (2007: three) directors, details of whose
HPR XS  AFEHB— R (ZE remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
Z+F MB) BT EEREENS of the remuneration of the one (2007: two) non-
SEIBWOTN director, highest paid employee for the year are as

follows:

rEH

Group
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
e FMEEDHE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,147 1,965
HXBHH R Performance related incentive payments 24 474
BEEELRRERF Employee share option benefits 33 72
RRET B R Pension scheme contributions 51 91
1,255 2,602
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MENTFTUTHEz2ZSHIIEESES
ZAEBWMT

1,000,001 T E HK$1,000,001 to
1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,500,000

RAFER —2REFHFIFEEEEEHR
HAAKBEMEHRORBER TEER
Pk E—THBERERHRERN
A3AZEEAN - ZEEERBENRF
BOVRELBEMER]  YOCREBHA
RS RANER - Mt ARFERBER
RNSBENCEER EXNRSHIIFE
EEEMERER-
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following band is

as follows:

EBEA"
Number of employees
—EENF —ERLF
2008 2007

During the year, share options were granted to a
non-director, highest paid employee in respect of
his services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised to the
income statement over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest

paid employee’s remuneration disclosures.
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10. B8 10. TAX
BEANNGHBEDNEAEFEREBES Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
CAHETE R BE A E17.5% (ZF of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
TLF175%) 5T E - Hftvih[@ 2 f& profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on
BB ABRIE RS R EBR LS EKHT profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
ERVERR 2IRBED - 2B RIEH the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
mEMERREAE - the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

—EBNE —EELF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
REH Group:
KEFE BB Current — Hong Kong
KEE MR Charge for the year - 11,727
NEFEEENR Underprovision in prior years - 3,980
REE - Hf[E Current — Elsewhere 324 634
BRI (K1 7£32) Deferred (note 32) (2,008) 1,532
AEEZHEIR, Total tax charge/(credit) for the year (1,684) 17,873
(M) &3

2008 iEF R4 Annual Report 1 21



TEE (BEKR) AR A7 Group Sense (International) Limited

e BB RME (&)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

BE_ZTN\F=ZA=1+—HLLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2008

10. HiE ()

BARBATER, (B1E) LA KR A
REWMBARREEREERKRFTEZ
B HENERBRERAEZHAX N
B ARERBE (AVAERR) HE

BRI R ZHROT

AEE

BAEF, (E518)

RIEEME17.5%
ZEELEF175%)
AECHIE
FEELMKTER
EINSE RS
81T HA R gt AN B A 18
2R
HEFHIE RN
&8
RNV Ry =
BAMB 2 WA
AR 2 F 2
S RIEAREIE A 2 BB
&8
Hfth

BASEBERMERE
Z BB (BE)
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10. TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the

effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group
—E2EZENE S
2008 2007
FETT FAET
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
Profit/(loss) before tax (16,579) 77,781

Tax at the statutory tax rate of

17.5% (2007: 17.5%) (2,901) 17.5 13,612 17.5

Higher tax rate for specific

provinces or local authority (318) 1.9 64 0.1
Adjustments in respect of

current tax of previous periods - - 3,980 5.1
Losses attributable to jointly-

controlled entities 191 (1.1) - -
Losses attributable to associates 62 (0.4) 244 0.3
Income not subject to tax (4,505) 27.2 (5,186) (6.7)

Expenses not deductible for tax 6,413 (38.7) 5,964 7.7
Tax losses utilised from previous

periods - - (1,201) (1.5)
Others (626) 3.8 396 0.5

Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s

effective rate (1,684) 10.2 17,873 23.0
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10. HiE ()

11.

REZE_ZTZETXEF=ZA=+—81
FE-BAEBRBR(BMBRH]) BA
EEETWE 2R FMN1999/2000F &
20042005 RMF L #HETHBHES -
HRBBERNEELERAREITHGEE
& WEFL1999/20004F + 2000/20014F
£2001/2002F R B F E % LR E 1% F)
BHFTE - AEBEAREBRRESE
FERITHRLESZ - BERE L
ZEERA - AN BB #482000/2001
FRHRFE 2188,0008 THEHRILE
R_EENFZAZ+—BULEFERNE
B 424,600,000 T2 R F °

1999/20004F + 2000/20014F }22001/2002
FRUFEZREUEMNESHAGEEE
REFAXEFFHLEEER/AEATNERZ
FwmAH o REBEEEETHMHARE
REEHRB - ARREERR - KBk
MEERcEXRER  RABAEE
BREFFH D OREETE - E
BRELZBED RAMBEBEELZE T
CEAERBIARE -

ERRAREFEARELRRN
(B1R)

HE_ZZNFZ-ZA=ZF+—HILFE
RAAAREFREAERBLGEEEERRE
—ZERINARXRABREHBRRE 2
E518137,0008 L (ZEZT L F : & T
14,502,000/ 7T.) (F$5E35(b)) ©

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

10. TAX (Continued)

11.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a tax audit on certain group companies
for the years of assessment from 1999/2000 to
2004/2005. As the IRD is still conducting the tax
review on these companies, it has issued protective
profits tax assessments to them for the years
of assessment of 1999/2000, 2000/2001, and
2001/2002. The Group has lodged objections with
the IRD against the protective profits tax assessments.
According to the holdover notice issued by the IRD,
the Group had paid profits tax of HK$188,000 for
the year of assessment 2000/2001 and purchased Tax
Reserve Certificates totalling HK$4,600,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2006.

These protective profits tax assessments for the
years of assessment of 1999/2000, 2000/2001,
and 2001/2002 mainly relate to a dispute over the
deductibility of certain expenses for tax assessment
purposes. The tax audit is in progress and a final
settlement has not yet been reached. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, after taking
professional advice from its tax adviser, there
are reasonable grounds to object the protective
assessments under dispute and accordingly, the
existing provision made is adequate and the tax audit
will not result in material additional tax liability.

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2008
includes a loss of HK$137,000 (2007: profit of
HK$14,502,000) which has been dealt with in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company
(note 35(b)).
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12.

13.

iz 2

B — TR 3
—ETLE ER
38R 2.0%511)

2 2 R M — TR B
—ETLE ER
8 R2. 55 10)

AAREERREFEAEMS
BREFN(HE)

FREXREN (BB DREAFE
ARRREREARERT, (BE)
ERAFERZEBRITEBBRZ NEF
BYGEE -

FhEgan/ (BB DREAFE
AR EBEEERSE ARG EF (&
B)RTE - BETE 2 BT INEF
BERR/ARFACETEBR A (&2
AEAESRELRRN, (BB 2&
BMER) - MEREREITEMRSE HK
TEZRBREREZTRERTZERBR
ZINHEFHE -
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per ordinary share)

Proposed final — Nil

12. DIVIDENDS

—EENF —ETLF

Interim — Nil (2007: HK2.0 cents

2008 2007

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

- 23,952

(2007: HK2.5 cents per ordinary share) - 29,940
- 53,892

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in
the basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on

the deemed exercise of all outstanding share options.
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13. XA EBERRERTE AR 13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

SRERN (&FE) (&) ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

EREARESEHF (BB THIET The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)

DIBEAE

&R (BE)

RERTEA R E EEK
BB ARGEER
EARAREERN 2
A (&)

Bt

R S REA
BF/ (BR) 2 F R
B 81T BIRNIE
T

BAHETE L EBR
miEFHE
BRARE

per share are based on:

—EENF —ETLF

2008 2007
FHET TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
Earnings/(Loss)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company,
used in the basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share calculations (15,250) 59,324
R&EE
Number of shares
—EENF —ERLF
2008 2007
Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used
in the basic earnings/(loss) per share
calculation 1,197,650,871 1,197,613,029
Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options 485,828 576,947

1,198,136,699 1,198,189,976
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14. ¥ BERRZE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HETH B HER
kg®  NREE  ZERRR BE IARIE RE  EEIE aE
Leasehold Furniture,
landand  Leasehold fixturesand  Plantand Toolings Motor ~ Construction
buildings improvements  equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles in progress Total

TET TET AT TAT TET TET AT TET
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000

ZZEN\EZf=1-A 31 March 2008

WoEELFZE-RAR At 31 March 2007 and at

ZERLEMA-A 1 April 2007

A Cost 67,276 32,33 88,065 129,524 105,987 10,156 1,444 434,787
githe Accumulated depreciation (16,294 (23650)  (81317) (112091  (91,14) (1437) - (339)
FEAE Net carrying amount 50,982 8,685 6,748 17433 14,845 219 1,444 102,856

RZZSCERA-H BAR At 1 April 2007, net of

githe accumulated depreciation 50,982 8,685 6,748 17433 14,845 2719 1,444 102,856
e Additions - 231 8,613 2,975 9,661 156 - 23,116
KEFHRNE Depreciation provided during

the year (1,462) (3,803) (3,408) (9,849) (11,604) (1,138) - (31,264)
hE Disposals - - (47) (25) (15) - - (87)
gz Transfers - 1167 - - - - (1,167) -
EXE] Fxchange realignment 4,130 671 145 1,769 586 130 147 7578

RZZBNE=A=1-0 Bk At 31 March 2008, net of

githe accumulated deprecation 53,650 9,031 12,051 12303 13473 1,867 04 102,799
RZZFNE=F=1-R At31 March 2008

KA Cost 72,676 31833 0726 133139 17913 10,702 04 463403

githe Accumulated depreciation (19,0)  (28792) (78675  (120836)  (104,440) (8,835) - (360,608)

FEAE Net carmying amount 53,650 9,031 12,051 12303 13473 1,867 04 102,799
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14. 9% MERZHE (E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
BEtH B2 BBk
REF  hERE  RERGE k% IARIE g EEIE 28
Leasehold Furniture,
landand ~ Leasehold fixtures and Plant and Toolings Motor  Construction
buldings improvements  equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles in progress Total

TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ ‘000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS:000 HK$000

“ERLEZAZT-0 31 March 2007
At 31 March 2006 and at
1 April 2006
Cost 63,855 24,748 83,744 121,690 93,700 9,619 4318 401,674
Accumulated depreciation (14,227) (20,115) (76,049) (97,378) (81,601) (6,179) - (295,549)
FE3E Net carrying amount 49,628 4633 7,695 231 12,09 3440 4318 106,125

RIZEEMA-B Bk At 1 April 2008, net of

ZiE accumulated depreciation 49,628 4,633 7,695 24312 12,09 3,440 4318 106,125
e Additions - 987 1,943 1763 1,136 552 4,89% 221
KERHRNE Depreciation provided during

the year (1.329) (2,602) (2,893 (11,370) (9,668) (1,341) - (29,203)
HE Disposals - (440) (106) Q) (9) (5) - (562)
&2 Transfers - 6,001 - 1073 99 - (8,066) -
ERE Exchange realignment 2,683 106 109 1,657 295 73 2% 5219

WEEREE=ZF=-H BB At31 March 2007, netof

2iE accumulated deprecation 50,982 8685 6,748 17433 14,845 2719 1,444 102,85
R-Z5rEZA=1-A At 31 March 2007

s Cost 67,276 32,335 88,065 129,524 105,987 10,156 1,444 434787

2iE Accumulated depreciation (16,294) (23,650) (81,317) (112,091) (91,142) (7,437) - (331,931)

EETE Net carrying amount 50,982 8,685 6,748 17433 14,845 2719 1,444 102,85
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14. 9% BERRE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
REEAAEERELHEEFZER The net book values of the Group’s leasehold land
FEDTT and buildings at the balance sheet date are analysed
as follows:
—BENF —EELF
2008 2007
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$°000
REEZFHFHEE Medium term leases in Hong Kong 9,418 9,698
KAz RFHRHEE Medium term leases in Mainland China 44,232 41,284
53,650 50,982

15. ENHEERE 15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

rEH

Group
—EBENEF —TTLF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEA—RAZERHEE Carrying amount at 1 April 9,214 8,858
10 Addition 8,344 -
RARFEDER (H776) Recognised during the year (note 6) (416) (251)
i 5 & 5 Exchange realignment 931 607
R=A=+—HZEMEME Carrying amount at 31 March 18,073 9,214

FIATENFIE - e Kk Current portion included in prepayments,

HEi R 2 82D  deposits and other receivables (429) (238)
IEmEE D Non-current portion 17,644 8,976

HETUNPELATFHREERS -

The leasehold lands are held under a medium term

lease and are situated in Mainland China.
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16. IEFEFA 2 B A 16. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS
TEE
Group
—EENE —ETEF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
REA—HA At 1 April:
AR Cost 29,276 25,848
RErE#E LR E Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (22,502) (18,684)
BREFAE Net carrying amount 6,774 7,164
RIOA—BZRKA Cost, net of accumulated amortisation
RS RO E and impairment, at 1 April 6,774 7,164
Bhn—mEk R Additions — internal development 4,131 3,428
FRBHER (M it6) Amortisation provided during the year
(note 6) (5,046) (3,818)
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March 5,859 6,774
R=A=+—8 At 31 March:
AR Cost 33,407 29,276
REr LR E Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (27,548) (22,502)
BREFE Net carrying amount 5,859 6,774
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17. MY B A Rl fE &= 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AT
Company

—BENF —TELF

2008 2007

F#T FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

ELEWRE  mRA Unlisted investments, at cost 269,334 269,334
FE B B A R BR K Due from subsidiaries 767,266 791,321
& 1~ B B8 1% ) BR K Due to subsidiaries (193,344) (187,707)
843,256 872,948

JB - ORE? Less: Impairment? (269,334) (269,334)
573,922 603,614
# HRAEBRETHERARFESRSES “# An impairment was recognised for certain
BB FRMEE269,334,000/8 7T unlisted investments with a carrying amount of
(RBRBREEEN (ZE2T L5 HK$269,334,000 (before deducting the impairment
269,334,000 70) 2 A T I ETERE loss) (2007: HK$269,334,000) because certain
WRAE RAFRREELEES (= subsidiaries of the Group have been making loss
TEAF M| o persistently. There was no movement in the impairment

during the year (2007: Nil).

AATREHEEBEATHEERB AT At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses
Z AR R BN - AISERME A T the prospects and financial positions of its
CRDRESEEMRETR  SEF5 subsidiaries, on an individual basis, as to whether
MBARE THRRAZBEEBEREETH there is any indication of impairment of its interests
IR AZENAERE - in subsidiaries or any impairment loss previously

recognised for subsidiaries in prior years may no

longer exist or may need to be adjusted accordingly.

BRAEARTZ@ARNEEZEKNE AL Except for amounts due from subsidiaries of
A Bk 73,000,000/ T (ZEE L5 : HK$3,000,000 (2007: HK$29,940,000) which are
29,940,000/ 7T) - JE U K JE T BT B A repayable within twelve months, the amounts due
AR AEER 22 REETEEX from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
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17. BB R (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
HezpEzREERLQAFERE - and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying
EERE BB HBRARZ amounts of these amounts due approximate to
EHEBERGEERE T —EARNEE their fair values. In the opinion of the directors, the
HREEBBERANRBIERE - balances with subsidiaries are not repayable within

twelve months from the balance sheet date except
for the amounts aforementioned and are therefore

shown in the balance sheet as non-current.

FTERBARZEHBOT ¢ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
SMRL/ BRATEERE/ AN E R RE
BN S-§ck EfRAEE ZEDH TEXH
Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage

incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
% registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities

BEE CF:3
Direct Indirect

EEMRERBRAT B 10087 - 100 REZK
Concept Technology Hong Kong HK$100 Investment
Industries Limited holding
Favourable Outcome Limited* EEREREE ¥V - 100 REER
British Virgin Islands Us$1 Investment
("BVI") holding
ZRDEMETARRAM™  PEARKAME 45,000,000 - 100 HERHE
Global Asia High-tech (THE HK$45,000,000 ETEmM
Electronics Co Ltd (M* The People's Manufacture
Republic of China and trading
(“PRC") of electronic
products
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17. BB R (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FEMBARZFEET : (&) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

ML EROTEEREK/ KD R B RAE
MRS MR AEE AR TEEH
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
£ registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
E# CF:
Direct Indirect
Group Sense (China) Limited* RERUAHE E 100 - REER
BVI Us$1 Investment
holding
Group Sense (Dongguan) Limited* E @R E S /o 10%7T - 100 RENE
BVI/ The PRC Us$10 Property
holding
Group Sense (Holding) Limited* ~ EBRZEHS 3,000% 7T 100 - BB
BVI US$3,000 Investment
holding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited* RERUME E 100 - REER
BVI US$1 Investment
holding
BEEBYNERR A BT 100 7T 100 - RERR
Group Sense Cyberspace Limited*  Samoa Us$100 Investment
holding
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17. B AR ()

TEMBRARZFROT  (8)

=L

Name

EERERAT

Group Sense Limited

Group Sense Manufactory

Company Limited

BERERRAA
Group Sense Manufactory

Company Limited

S (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

ML EROTEEREK/ KD R B RAE
MRS MR AEE AR TEEH
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to Principal
and operations share capital the Company activities
B CF:
Direct Indirect
BE EAK - 100 RARHE
Hong Kong 1,000 BfEmM
ERERFENE Design and
ERR R trading of
200,000/ 7T electronic
Ordinary shares products
HK$1,000
Non-voting 5%
deferred shares
HK$200,000?
EBRARE,/ TH 1%7T - 100 REEFER
BVI/ The PRC US$1 IR
Provisions of
subcontracting
services for
electronic
products
BB 28T - 100 BERK
Hong Kong HK$2 Investment
holding

133
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17. B AR ()

TEMBRARZFROT  (8)

=L

Name

BEBHHRRERAA
Group Sense Mobile-Tech
Limited

EEPDAERAER AR
Group Sense PDA
Holdings Limited

BEZLERAERAA
Group Sense PDA Limited

134
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B3
AR EE

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

BA
Hong Kong

He#S
Cayman

Islands

B
Hong Kong

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

ERTEERET
MR AEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered

share capital

AT
HK$2

Rl
2,115,837% T
ABEER
17,182% 7T
Ordinary shares
US$2,115,837
Series A
preferred shares
Us$17,182

100/ 7T
HK$100

FRTEGRE
2B

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
B CF:
Direct Indirect

- 98.95

98.95 -

- 98.95

TEER

Principal

activities

R RHE
BTER
Design and
trading of
electronic

products

4 12
Investment

holding

R RHE
EFEM
Design and
trading of
electronic

products
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17. B~ B = (&) 17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TEMBRARZFROT  (8)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

ML EROTEEREK/ KD R B RAE
MRS MR AEE AR TEEH
Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage

incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
£ registration registered attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities

B CF:
Direct Indirect

BERAMBR(BR)BERAA BB 1007 7T - 100 REER
Group Sense Software Technology ~ Hong Kong HK$100 Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited holding
#AL JI-Tt A SR 60,000,000H - 100 Rt R E
Kabushiki Kaisha Japan JPY 60,000,000 ETER
Group Sense* Design and
trading of
electronic
products
Supreme Style Technology AERAHE 100% 7T - 100 REER
Limited* BVI Us$100 Investment
holding
ERFRABRARK e AK#20,000,000 - 70 R RHE
BRRAA The PRC RMB20,000,000 EFEMRUM
Design
and trading

of electronic
products and

software
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17. B AR () 17.

TEMBRARZFROT  (8)

Hit -
(1) 2HEAF -

(2) BERMILEMBEERKSHEESR
AARRMEMBRERAE ZBEHME
FEABRRRERNARE LREZEN
TR B BRI 2 BRI ) K

(3) RPBEKIZZEREERF -

* REBEBLKEAMEBARE MR
KEETEN EIPAEBRAK B PR EZ -

ERBIEFTRREAKTEZIAFEE
BEEARESHENAEEEEFEZ
EMZWBLR -EZRR - RHEM
B AR ZFBEREHERBRITE -

18. HEEHIERER 18.
JEhEEFE Share of net assets
Wk g B Goodwill on acquisition

2008 /A& Annual Report

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

Notes:
(1) Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

(2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting of the company or to participate
in any distribution on winding up.

(3) Limited liability company established in Mainland
China.

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES

rEE

Group
—EEBNEF —ETRLF
2008 2007
FHET TET
HK$°000 HK$°000
4,321 -
6,680 -
11,001 -
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

18 HEZEHEREDS (K

HEEH TR BN Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as

follows:
et HEfRL/ Al
ROFE Afes  REE#ER RRE H FEEH
Particulars Place of Percentage of
&% of issued incorporation/ Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held  registration interest power sharing activities
HEMTARAT 700,000/ 7T BB 35 35 35 BiE REFAR
Neoplatec Technology HK$700,000 Hong Kong HEBRRM
Company Limited HEER
Manufacture,
design
and trading
of in-mould
technology
related
products
BEEHRERRR AR 5,402,000 HE 19.78 20 1978 BERHE
BRA (R RMBS5,402,000 The PRC ETERESN
BEREREEST Manufacture
ERBRRTF) and trading
(TEEMED) of electronic
(Chongging New medical
Standard Medical appliances

Equipment Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as
Chongging Standard
Electronic Product
Co., Ltd.)
("Chongging New
Standard”)
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18. HEEHERER (&) 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

Pt EESE LR AN ) B EE The above interests in jointly-controlled entities are
B indirectly held by the Company.

EEFEZHMBRFEA+_A=1+—8 The financial statements of Chongging New Standard
ABFEEH - FAEVBHRERTIBIEZIER have a financial year ending 31 December. The
rTHIEER—A—HE=A=+—HH consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the
MZBEAXGELAE - material transactions of this jointly-controlled entity

between 1 January and 31 March.

TRTABNEEERBE 2 ALEEHEF The following table illustrates the summarised
THIEREPIEERE financial information of the Group’s jointly-controlled
entities:

—EENE

2008

FET

HK$000

G RIEH B EE Share of the jointly-controlled entities” assets
EBE: and liabilities:

MENEE Current assets 3,767

FMBEE Non-current assets 701
REBAEE Current liabilities (147)

BEFE Net assets 4,321
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18 ftEEZFIEE#ERS ()

18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

—ZEENF
2008
FET
HK$’000

FEMR RS EE 2 %5 - Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ results:
WA Revenue 66
E g A Other income 44
110
> AR Total expenses (1,204)
i1z E518 Loss after tax (1,094)

2008 §AF % Annual Report

139



140

TEE (BEKR) AR A7 Group Sense (International) Limited

RE B ERRMEE (&)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)
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10. B N T RER 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
rEE
Group
—EENF —ETELF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEHEETFE Share of net assets - 533
K mE Goodwill on acquisition - 8,491
- 9,024
JE LS BS & A R BR 5K Amounts due from associates 7,722 5,710
JBORE ¢ Less: Impairment # (4,320) (4,161)
3,402 1,549
3,402 10,573
# HRZERAEEB T 2HE N ARFE #  An impairment was recognised for the amounts

B 151 - B Bt ER E (E4,087,0007%8
T (RMBREERR) (ZETEF
3,928,000/ 7t) 2 FE W B & A &) BR 5K
ERIHE -

2008 /A& Annual Report

due from associates with a carrying amount of
HK$4,087,000 (before deducting the impairment loss)
(2007: HK$3,928,000) because these associates of the
Group have been making loss persistently.
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10 B NI RES (8) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Be N NnRIBEREZEHUOT - The movements in the provision for impairment of

interests in associates are as follows:

rEHE
Group
—EBNEF —ERLF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 4,161 233
BERERMEE 1B (A7276) Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 159 3,928
RER At the end of year 4,320 4,161
JiE Uk B & N B BR 383,402,00008 7T (= F The amounts due from associates of HK$3,402,000
T4 ¢ 1,549,000/ 7T) I B IER AN E (2007: HK$1,549,000), included in the Group’s
ERBEET  /EEM 2EREE current assets, are unsecured, interest-free and have
EERH ZERELREEEELAT no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of
BfEHE - these amounts due approximate to their fair values.
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For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

19. B&E QR ()

TEBEQRZFBOT

s T

BRA S

Particulars
28 of issued
Name shares held

BEMBTEAERAR(THER])  3,50087T

ACME Tech Precision HK$3,500
Moulds Limited
(“ACME")

BIe REHEBR A A 45,0007 7T
([+MeFR]) HK$45,000

Sinocard Technology Limited

(“Sinocard”)

EXBEIEBERRRERTELKE
FHED S AT S H A 2k & BT E 75 T
KK B PTE X

EREIEZAREUAKTHEZIAFER
BEE %%‘Mﬁlﬂﬂ&%@ﬁéﬁfﬁi
EMozBERF - EFZRR - RBHE
ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁE@Ei’lﬁﬂﬂ%@l’éfﬂi@ﬁéﬂﬁ o
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

3o AV SEEGRA
A EEZZAESHL TEX®
Percentage

of ownership

Place of interest
incorporation/ attributable Principal
registration to the Group activities
BB 35 IRAERES
Hong Kong Manufacture
and trading
of moulds
BE 45 BX%
Hong Kong Inactive

Both of the above principal associates are not audited
by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm

of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the associates of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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19. Bt N ElfEm () 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
HREEZEHEAAERBRAEER The Group has discontinued the recognition of its
REE AR D WAEED KRIEER share of losses of ACME and Sinocard because the
HEGMER RSN RER ~EER share of losses of these associates exceeded the
KEER BT ZARERELBE QRS Group's interests in the associates. The Group's
B DR A139,0008 L (ZEZT +4F - unrecognised share of losses of these associates
823,000/ 7T) k5,483,000 T (= F=F for the current year and cumulatively amounted to
+F : 5,344,000 T) ° HK$139,000 (2007: HK$823,000) and HK$5,483,000

(2007: HK$5,344,000), respectively.

TROAPBNEEERE 2 AEHBE The following table illustrates the summarised
NEIFHEERBE financial information of the Group’s associates

extracted from their management accounts:

—EENF —ETLF

2008 2007

FET FHT

HK$°000 HK$'000

BE Assets 7,045 6,556
=R Liabilities (16,106) (16,528)
KA Revenue 5,022 535
KEEEIE Loss for the year (317) (11,315)
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20. it HERKRE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
AEH
Group
—EENF —ETELF
2008 2007
F#ET FHETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRATEVE 2 ET Listed equity investments, at fair value:
AR E
BB Hong Kong - 115
AR ZIE EMREARIEE  Unlisted equity investments, at cost 36,094 36,094
JB R E Less: Impairment *# (10,000) (10,000)
26,094 26,094
26,094 26,209
# HREBEARRAE RHEREEE *  An impairment was recognised for an unlisted
32,055,000 JT (3K 0 BR 7 18 5 48 Al) investment with a carrying amount of HK$32,055,000
(ZZZ+F :32,0550008L) 25 F (before deducting the impairment loss) (2007:
FEMREBRBRME - RAFERRE HK$32,055,000) due to the non-performance of the
WEEEH (T LF : |) - investment. There was no change in the impairment

during the years (2007: Nil).

REAERN BERREFHERZAEEH During the year, the gross gain of the Group’s
A ERE RS EE212,0008 T (= available-for-sale investments recognised directly in
TE+F:2F)ERERE  TRF equity amounted to HK$212,000 (2007: Nil) was
NZHBmKANER - removed from equity and recognised in the income

statement for the year.

LR EBREREAFESFKE  BEIREFE The above investments consist of investments in
RAMEEREBERZEETEIHE RE equity securities which were designated as available-
EFE o for-sale investments and have no fixed maturity date

or coupon rate.

ETBRAEREZ AFETREHRTE The fair values of listed equity investments were
TE - based on quoted market prices.

144 2008 JAF S Annual Report



S (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

RE B ERRMEE (&)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

2 EENF=ZA=+—"HItFE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

21 BWEE X RERX 21. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY
FEU B8 N B BR R R - i6% The amount due from a related company is
FRFEEBR_ZT—TF+A+MA unsecured, bears interest at a rate of 6% per annum
FEEE HEmMEHREAFERS - and will be fully repayable on 14 October 2010. The
carrying amount of the balance approximates to its
fair value.
22. REim< 22. LONG TERM DEPOSITS
AEHE
Group
—EENE ZZTLF
2008 2007
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEWE BEK Deposit for acquisition of items of property,
BESENER&n plant and equipment 799 2,103
HEZRS Rental deposits 1,387 1,387
2,186 3,490
BEEMEBHASORE - HEKKREH None of the assets is either past due or impaired.
ZHBEERIRYBBRLH A& The financial assets related to receivables for which
ErRZeR/RE2E  AREEEARD there was no recent history of default. The Group’s
FERE - long term deposits are interest-free and their carrying

amounts approximate to their fair values.
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23.

24,

&

R M Raw materials
8 Work in progress
BIFK o Finished goods
EWE 5 KRR

JEUE Z R 3K Trade receivables
VERIE] Impairment

AEBEHEEFPZESTEUEETLR
AT o R E— RN F60EI0K - F1A
EEFEERANEERE - AREHKE
B 8 BOR(E T 2 1B Wk IR 1T B AR 12 I
YEHEEERBREEZRE SREEE
EHREHARHRE - BEREZERRT
AR R LR R AR E 2 B
EFBEFRATFEREDHNER  FE

2008 /A& Annual Report

23. INVENTORIES

REME

Group
—EBNEF —BTLF
2008 2007
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
86,592 105,814
6,506 31,447
22,735 33,638
115,833 170,899

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

REME

Group
—EBNE —FTLF
2008 2007
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
161,749 175,273
(16,264) (11,567)
145,485 163,706

The Group's trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally 60 to
90 days. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are interest-free. In

view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
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24. EWE SR (&) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
R TeRhED BREZFERZE Group's trade receivables relate to a large number
EHEEEQNFEES - of diversified customers, there is no significant

concentration of credit risk. The carrying amounts of

the Group's trade receivables approximate to their

fair values.
AT AW E S8R5 A FRENHA B R 5 An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the
BFEFEMREER ZRER DT balance sheet date, based on the payment due date

and net of provisions, is as follows:

rEH

Group
—EENEF —TTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
0E60K 0 - 60 days 130,950 155,670
61290k 61 — 90 days 5,722 505
[ GEEN Over 90 days 8,813 7,531
145,485 163,706
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24.

2008

W E 5 R (&)

FEWE SRR ERBZEBWT

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

rEH
Group
ZEEBN\F —TTAF
2008 2007
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REH] At the beginning of year 11,567 11,237
DHERRMERTE - JFE  Impairment losses recognised, net (note 6) 4,697 330
(Hizte6)
REFE R At the end of year 16,264 11,567

ot B B AR FOR B B e 1 E R
KO EEKE 5 R 16,264,000% T
—ZTZT+F 11,567,000 0) HIEE
M8 A&27,611,0008 L (ZET L F -
17,877,000/ 7T.) ° 16 5l 4 5 B F& Y &
SEREHRSCEHFIERRHE  HHE
AT El 2 R Rz — &5 - NEE
WERZEERBETMERRIEM

RS -

BFHRE Annual Report

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of HK$16,264,000
(2007: HK$11,567,000) with a carrying amount
of HK$27,611,000 (2007: HK$17,877,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in default or delinquency in
payments and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over

these balances.
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24, B E SR (&) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
I B Bl Sk L RAR BB TRE 2 ERE The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are
AR ZBRER D ITAT - neither individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired is as follows:

rEH

Group
—E2BN\F —ZTLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RiBAR Sk N RLE Neither past due nor impaired 65,405 99,587
BH—ZmEA 1 to 2 months past due 62,673 53,774
BHRE =@ A 2 to 3 months past due 4 275
BHE® =8 A Over 3 months past due 6,056 3,760
134,138 157,396

B HEA R N R (B 2 R AR B A
2R P T I S RS8R o

BRI EREBE EBYRNBRAEE
ZECHERIFNES - RIEBELCE
ARABEERR ARNEEERYEE
RWE YRBERDAZEHED - &
M/E/?f FRSBIFLRERE - A5 E
SEAFEEMER R EM

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements over these balances.
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25 AR - RERHMEWRERR 25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
ZEEERABHTERE ZZ2/ None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
BE BT AN AR GO 8k 2 EULRRIE o financial assets related to receivables for which there

was no recent history of default.

26 BAFERABRRZRE 26. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

AEHE
Group
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000
ELTEFES Unlisted debt securities,
ERATE at fair value
—BEHFHEEFERNEE — Debentures with fixed
55%%7.5% 2 F&k interest rates from 5.5%
IR T —ZF to 7.5% per annum with
+—ANBZE maturity dates from
—ET-MNEFEMNA 8 November 2010 to
iy AN =N 28 April 2014 41,532 41,211
EXRZBEENGFR_ZEZELF=H The above unlisted debt securities at 31 March 2008
= t—HZ¥FLTMESBSHEWEER and 2007 were classified as held for trading.
AREE -
BATETRABRRIKREZ A TFEN The fair values of investments at fair value through
RNEEREERNHEERE ZIZE ARE profit or loss are determined based on the quoted bid
ERE - prices at the close of business at the balance sheet

date.
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26.

27.

BAVPERABRZRZRE ()

RZTEENFE=ZA=Z+—H &&
E H o R H {820,000,0007%8 T & A F
BRABGZIRE(ZZETLF
20,000,000/ 7T) BB H - LEUF R
SE—RITEX (EE31) ©

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

26. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of the
Group's investments at fair value through profit
or loss amounting to HK$20,000,000 (2007:
HK$20,000,000) were pledged as security for
overdraft facilities of the Group’s banking facilities
(note 31).

fTE€mI A 27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—BENEF
2008

BE =R
Assets Liabilities
FET FET
rE Group HK$°000 HK$°000
REINES L Forward currency contracts 5,717 3,775

EHERHNZEREREAFEM
Fle bFRITESMIAZRS  T)
ERETHRITAR AR R BEEIERITA

N

AVARS

REBET FUERBIINEE L - LLAERE
HEXRRR MHXTIFEHPGHEZ
W - SEE RN EERITETAZ AT
B8 % $)2,893,000/8 T Am 25t A
RERNZEZEEBRERAN(ZTETLF -
RE) °

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts
are the same as their fair values. The above
transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Limited and China Merchant Bank.

The Group has entered into the above forward
currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging
currency derivatives amounting to HK$2,893,000
were credited to the consolidated income statement
during the year (2007: Nil).
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28 REeRREEZEIEE 28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AEE D H
Group Company

Re MIRTTHES Cash and bank balances
EHF R Time deposits

HeRRESEMEFEF Cash and cash equivalents

REEBR AEEUARE (TAR
BMDFEZReERBESEEEER
/80,780,000 L (=TT £ & :
48,738,000 7T) - AR TS EHRR
BREHMEYR A REBEPEINEE
BIEHIRAEE  SERNESEERTE -
REBBEFBERENREELEDR
MIRITEARBERABEMEY -

RITBE S HRBERITEARITERFNE
2B R EREA B o R F A BB
Bem¥ BHEHFRZIBRAR -
NF-—RE=BATE IREEZE
HATE BT SR M R R BRI B » SRITIF 77
MR ARFERBRB OB R MR
BRHIRTT - RELREFEEBZEER
BEEANTERES -
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SEENE —FTLF -BENF —TTLF

2008 2007 2008 2007
FET T FTET TET
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000

66,982 66,594 89 78
185,183 206,291 - -

252,165 272,885 89 78

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"”) amounted to HK$80,780,000 (2007:
HK$48,738,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks

authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their

fair values.
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29 BRNESERRRERENE 29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
UTAREMNE SRR LEMNERIANR An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
FHAFGEMREE B 2R DT - the balance sheet date, based on the payment due

dates is as follows:

rEE
Group
—EBEN\E ZTETLF
2008 2007
FET F&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
0E60X 0 - 60 days 103,009 161,843
61290K 61 - 90 days 1,606 3,660
HBiE90K Over 90 days 1,902 1,323
106,517 166,826
EREZEREZTIHAE  B—KRK The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
30KRGEE - ENESEFNEEERE are normally settled on 30-day terms. The carrying
NEERE amounts of the trade payables approximate to their
fair values.
0. HtENBRAR R EFTEE 30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
H R BR A 5t 2 - B R Other payables are interest-free and have an average
BNEA - HtENERRRETEED term of six months.  The carrying amounts of other
REEREATERE - payables and accruals approximate to their fair
values.
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31. MERITHEE

EH Group

Current

g S
&

TEE - EEA
WER—FAEE

Mat

(@) R&EHEH " A#16,000,0008 T (=F
T+ 4 : 16,000,000 7T) 2 & &£ H
BXERBEATHA (ZTTLF:

B) AEBMBEIHERENAEH
:./\2720 000,000/ T (Z T T L& ¢
20,000,000/ 70) LA FELAEBRE
ZETHRERRER (M26) -

REER AEBRNRTEENET
EEAAFERE -

<

(0 REER KXR2ARAEEBAEHK
2,594,000 L (T LF : 8F) 2
BITERIREER -

i

(d) AEEZEITEEA33,338,000HE
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repayable within one year

. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWING

Bank borrowing, unsecured and

—BENEF
2008
BRFE(%) FHET
Effective
interest
rate (%) HK$'000
1.875 2,594

Notes:

(a)

The Group's overdraft facilities amounting to
HK$16,000,000 (2007: HK$16,000,000), none
of which (2007: Nil) had been utilised as at the
balance sheet date. The Group's overdraft facilities
are secured by the pledge of certain of the Group's
investments at fair value through profit or loss totalling
HK$20,000,000 (2007: HK$20,000,000) (note 26).

The carrying amount of the Group's bank borrowing
approximated to its fair value as at the balance sheet
date.

The Company has guaranteed the Group's bank loan
amounting to HK$2,594,000 (2007: Nil) as at the
balance sheet date.

The Group's bank borrowing is denominated in
Japanese Yen 33,338,000.
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32 IEFERIE 32. DEFERRED TAX
ARFEERELHESEEBENEIHBN The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
mr during the year are as follows:

EEMREERE Deferred tax liabilities
rEH Group
A F e IR 88
BB ERITE RIREFRB
BT B R i A 1Y 5 18 wmEE
Depreciation Losses

allowance in  available for
excess of offset against

related future taxable

depreciation profit Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
RZZEZXRFMA—H At 1 April 2006 848 (72) 776
FAREBREEN Deferred tax charged/
Mk, (BE) K (credited) to the income
R (et 10) statement during the year
(note 10) 1,577 (345) 1,232
R_ZETLF At 31 March 2007 and
—A=+—B8Bk 1 April 2007 2,425 (417) 2,008
R +FMNA—H
FAREBREEN Deferred tax charged/
Mk, (BB K (credited) to the income
R IE (M5t 10) statement during the year
(note 10) 364 (2,372) (2,008)
RZZEZENF At 31 March 2008 2,789 (2,789) -
=A=+—H
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32 EERIE (&) 32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
EERBERE Deferred tax assets
AEE Group
Hit
Others
FET
HK$000

RZZEERFMNA—H At 1 April 2006 300
FRELEBERNRD Deferred tax charged to the consoldiated income

EIERIE (M7E10) statement during the year (note 10) (300)
RZEZ+F=A=+—8 " At 31 March 2007, 1 April 2007 and

—EELFMOMA-AK 31 March 2008 -

2/ \F#=ZHA=+—H
RIETIES B Net deferred tax liabilities:
R-ZEZELF=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 2,008
R-ZEZNF=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 -
AEBERBEBRIABAMREBEE The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
#7106,908,000/8 T (Z T T+ F : before IRD assessment of HK$106,908,000 (2007:
87,909,000/8 7T) M) B¢ 75 &5 18 - I A i HK$87,909,000) that are available indefinitely
EREEIEEERBABEN R ABRE for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
JERBUR N - H&MB AR EE— K companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
B B 3R A H JE R A0 2 DA 38 7% tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
EWMEARAEBAHBER Wtz these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
ZEEME  TABRELREEE - have been loss-making for some time and it is not

considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised

by these subsidiaries.
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32 RN IE (8]) 32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
RZZEZENEF=ZA=+T—H B#HRHEAE At 31 March 2008, there was no significant
EEETHEQR - BtEQa sk L RE unrecognised deferred tax liability (2007: Nil) for taxes
%JE” BROXREHBMNCDEREL  AEE that would be payable on the unremitted earnings

\\\\\ BINRIBAE  WASEEWERZ of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries, associates or
% T8 1M FE S M A B T AE R A K jointly-controlled entities as the Group has no liability
BRELEHREAEBE (S LF &) - to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.
AR B A H %R S A A A B 5 A P There are no income tax consequences attaching
BHER- to the payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.

33. B 33. SHARE CAPITAL
vy Shares
—EENF —ZETLHF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ERE Authorised:
3,000,000,0004% & & 3,000,000,000 (2007: 3,000,000,000)
HE0N0BILE B ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 300,000 300,000
—BELF
3,000,000,0000%)
EETRHRE Issued and fully paid:
1,197,663,029A% 1,197,663,029
FRRMEEC.10E T (2007: 1,197,613,029) 119,766 119,761
R il ordinary shares of
—ETLF HK$0.10 each

1,197,613,0290%)
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33. A (&)

IR (8)

BHE_ZZENF=ZRAR=1T—HLLEFE
A ARBEBRDZHMT

(i) 50,00017 18 55 RAAE K SR HEHE LATT
(8 T A%0.2028 T (T1F - 4238
S RE CRETXHAT) &10,100%
7T % 1750,000% & X EI1E0.10/8
TOHYE AR TR o

LRBARNRBEITEBRBAFATH
W EaiEsz  FFEEBRS 2

FmR

RZEZRFNA—A At 1 April 2006,
—EE+EZA=+—H 31 March 2007 and
RZZTLENA-A 1 April 2007

BT RE R RREG) Share options exercised (i)

RZZENF=ZA=1+—H At 31 March 2008
BEARRE
AKRRBERRETSE LIRIETEITE

BOIZBERABRENFRIANGEAYH
HRMTE34
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Company

had the following share transaction:

(i)  The subscription rights of 50,000 share options
were exercised at the exercise price of HK$0.202
per share, resulting in the issue of 50,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a total cash

consideration, before expenses, of HK$10,100.

A summary of the transactions during the prior
year with reference to the above movements in the

Company’s issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

ERTROHEA EETRE RORER L
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,197,613,029 119,761 409,705 529,466
50,000 5 5 10
1,197,663,029 119,766 409,710 529,476

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
the share options issued under the scheme are
included in note 34 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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34 BRAREE 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

ARRFRANETRBBAE S ([518])
SEME - Wl KRB SAEEKHH
RERHBANELHEZERZAERSHE
EoEZAER2EEREARALZ
EF(BRBUFATES)  AKHE
ZEMEERSRABE  ARBERERK
EAEAREAERBEEZAL - 518
RZZETZ-_FMA—BRERAR (BRIFE
LAEAD 77 305t S SRAE AT RIME R ) B %
BEIED  BHHIATHF -

RIFFHEIE AT EERS TRORITEZE
TERBEZRNDEE  THEBZLFE
SRR ETERN AR MEMERED
BTN Z210% ;BN R A ERS
B3 ME 1218 A H R 48 O R A T
AFRTZRNEBE - RERAREE
] B A 2 AT D 2 1%  (EfAT i IR
BB LR RENE - FPEREARRRE
REESHRRILE -

AARBZES BRITBRABLTE
BRIBETMIBBEALIELELR
BREVBRARNRRIBYIFATERTESL
HEAE © AN - RAERN 218 A B [ A
NRAZEERRABIIFATESRTHR
EFXREZBBALERLELRREMNE
TZBEMEEBBARFEAKHED %
TR0 20.1% B B < BEEB

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating, attracting
and retaining eligible participants whose contribution
are vital to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
the Company’s directors, including independent non-
executive directors, other employees or officers of
the Group, advisers or consultants of the Group, or
any person that have business relationship with the
Group. The Scheme was adopted on 2 April 2002
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, and will

remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general

meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their

associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
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34. BERREE (&)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is determinable by the directors and

is not later than the expiry date of the Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer, and (iii) the

nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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4. BEARESTE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
RARER - BIETE - TNHE LRI The following share options were outstanding under
i RATIE - the Scheme during the year:
—EEBNF —ETLHF
2008 2007
kg5 In#E ¥ 15
TEE AREHE TEE REREHE
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number

exercise price of options exercise price  of options

BT F& BT T3

=74 =3l

HK$ ‘000 HKS$ ‘000

per share per share

REH] At the beginning of year 0.690 26,987 0.761 18,933
FAEH Granted during the year 0.584 9,430 0.554 9,571
FRNTE Exercised during the year 0.202 (50) - -
F N EH Expired during the year 0.647 (776) 0.707 (1,517)
REK At the end of year 0.664 35,591 0.690 26,987
RAFRETTTE A RRERTTE B A9 The weighted average share price at the date of
BEFHRERSSET (ZEELF exercise for share options exercised during the year
RE) e was HK$0.58 (2007: Nil).
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4. BARRESE (E) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
RAFR - RIEFTE - BERBREZE The movements of the outstanding share options
FiEROT - under the Scheme during the year are as follow:

AREHE
Number of share options
BrARE
® ® BrARE RS 5 RE%
“ERLE “EENE ZBHES  (BREEWE) BiIRE ARE
BA-B  ERRE  FAGE  EREH ZAST-H (R.AF) (R.AE)  2fifiE»  BERE

Exercise At grant
price of date of
share options**  options***
Exercise period

of share options AT AT
Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Date of grant (both dates (BR) (§R)
s8% Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March of share options* inclusive) HKS HKS
HERER of participant 207  theyear  theyear the year 2008 (DD.MM.YYYY) (DD.MM.YYYY)  pershare per share
£ Directors

BREFATEL Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp 900,000 N N - 900,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005Zt0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010

ERE Tam Wai Tong, Thomas 900,000 N N - 900,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010

BES Tam Mui Ka Wai, Vivian 400,000 N N N 400,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005Zt0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010

400,000 - - - 400,000 07.08.2006 15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010

AARE Kazuhiro Otani 900,000 - - - 900,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005Zt0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010

800,000 - - - 800,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006%t0 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009

800,000 N N N 800,000 07.08.2006 15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010

- 800,000 - - 800,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008Zt0 0.584 0495
05.08.2011

Z58 (Wif)  Lee Koon Hung (Note) 900,000 - - - 900,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010

800,000 - - - 800,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006%t0 0.606 0.610
25.04.2009

800,000 N N - 800,000 07.08.2006 15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010

- 800,000 - - 800,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008Zt0 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
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34. BERREE (&)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

AREHE
Number of share options
BrARE
® ® BrARE RS =0 RE%
“EERLE “EENE ZBHESE  (BREEWE) BAIRE ARE
BA-B  EARE  FAAE  EREH ZAST-H (R.AF) (R.AE)  2fifiB™  BEREHw
Exercise At grant
price of date of
share options**  options***
Exercise period
of share options AT AT
Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Date of grant (both dates (BR) (8R)
s8% Name or category At 1 April during during during At 31 March of share options* inclusive) HKS HKS
HENER of participant 207  theyear  theyear the year 2008 (DD.MM.YYYY) (DD.MM.YYYY)  pershare per share
2 () Directors (Continued)
BEX () Luk Chui Yung, Judith 500,000 - - - 500,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
(Note) 19.01.2010
500,000 - - - 500,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006%t0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
500,000 - - - 500,000 19.07.2006 15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
- 800,000 - - 800,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008Zt0 0.584 049
05.08.2011
ErE Fok Ting Yeung, James 400,000 N N N 400,000 12.08.2002 17.06.2003%t0 0.250 0.166
16.06.2008
400,000 N N - 400,000 24.03.2003 20.01.2004Zt0 0.202 0.300
19.01.2009
400,000 N N - 400,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
400,000 N N - 400,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006Zt0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
400,000 - N N 400,000 07.08.2006 15.06.2007%t0 0.554 0.560
14.06.2010
- 400,000 N N 400,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008Zt0 0.584 049
05.08.2011
11,100,000 2,800,000 - - 13,900,000
Eft Others
&5 Employees 30,000 - - - 30,000 12.08.2002 17.06.2003%t0 0.250 0.166
16.06.2008
96,000 - (50,000) - 46,000 24.03.2003 20.01.2004Zt0 0.202 0300
19.01.2009
4,150,000 - - (148,0000 4,002,000 19.04.2004 20.01.2005%t0 0.950 0.920
19.01.2010
5,275,000 - - (173,000 5,102,000 03.06.2005 26.04.2006t0 0.606 0610
25.04.2009
6,336,000 - - (305,000 6,031,000 19.07.2006 15.06.2007%t0 0554 0.560
14.06.2010
- 6,630,000 - (150,0000 6,480,000 13.09.2007 08.08.2008Zto 0.584 0.495
05.08.2011
15,887,000 6,630,000 (50,000) (776,000) 21,691,000
aif Total 26,987,000 9,430,000 (50,0000 (776,000) 35,591,000
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34. BERREE (&)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Note: Ms. Luk Chui Yung, Judith is the spouse of Mr. Lee

Koon Hung. Pursuant to Section 344 of the SFO, as
both of Mr. and Mrs. Lee are directors, their respective
interests (including the share options) will not be
aggregated for disclosure purpose.

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

* %

* %k

The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at
the date of grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately
prior to the date of grant of the options. The price
of the Company’s shares disclosed immediately
before the exercise date of the share options is the
weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices
immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised over all of the exercises of options
within the disclosure line.

The fair value of the share options granted during
the year was HK$947,000 (2007: HK$861,000) of
which the Group recognised a share option expense
of HK$661,000 (2007: HK$715,000) during the year.
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34. BERREE (&)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used for the year ended 31 March 2008:

KER (%) Dividend yield (%) 9.09%
TEERR 1S (%) Expected volatility (%) 43.69%
mRRFIE (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.87%
BERIE 2 BTFR (F) Expected life of options (year) 3.89
IRE (&) Share prices (HK$) 0.50

BERABREBNEAFRIREBE —F
ESEBUBERE » W AR R ATREHIR
ZATE IR AR - TR 08 S BR 52 UK i A)
BRARBE ZRR  ERBRBERS
B

Rt ERAFERALE;F AMELELR
B EAMRE -

REEH ARAABREEA
35,591,0001p R 1T £ B L R #E - 1R
BAQRARITRALE  2EITER
T 8 5 R AR % & B 1735,591,000
R AR R AEINE B - & #3,559,100
EITRE MR AN KRR ET B 1T B 2 AT B
20,069,498 L% 10 4 (8 o

RULB SRR EBE » AR ABE
£)7535,591,00015 K17 B e RAXHE -
DRERE BAQREEITRN2.97% °

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past one year and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
35,591,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 35,591,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$3,559,100 and share
premium of HK$20,069,498 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 35,591,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.97% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.
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35. f#fE 35. RESERVES

(a) &=&HE (a) Group
AEBRAFERBEFEZHE The amounts of the Group's reserves and
SREESHENNGEETEHRE the movements therein for the current and
ES3NSABE ViR EREEESHERA - prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity on pages 53 to

54 of the consolidated financial statements.

AEBZERFEEBEREBE-—NNLZ The Group's special reserve represents the
FARDNB 2D ETHRIFT#EIT Z AR difference between the nominal value of the
SEEHEAMBE B ARRDZ shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
HE ARBZERMNMET 2R the Group reorganisation prior to the listing
NAIRMEEZ =5 - of the Company’s shares in 1993, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefor.
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35. fk & () 35. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) &=AF (b) Company
kx  ExIRE
RBEER  HARE  REEG e REEN B
Share Capital Share
premium  Contributed  redemption option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total

i TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Motes — HKSOOD  AKSOOD  AKSOOD  AKSUOD  AKSOO0 HKSOWO

NZEE ERA-H Balance at 1 April 2006 409,705 21,976 419 1,085 58,089 491,274
HRER T BL Equity-settled share option
ARELH arrangements 34 - - - 715 - 715
EEEN Profit for the year 1 - - - - 14,502 14,502
BREZZTLERERE  Interim 2007 dividend paid 12 - - - - (23,95 (23,95
e e g Proposed final 2007 dividend 12 - - - - (29,940) (29,940)
RERS
RZZELEZA=1-H  At31 March 2007 409,705 21,976 419 1,800 18,699 452,599
HRER T BL Equity-settled share option
ARELH arrangements 34 - - - 61 - 661
B350 Issue of shares 5 - - - - 5
FEEE Loss for the year il - - - - (137) (137)
BRE-FELERERE  Final 2007 dividend paid - - - - )] )}
BER%5ENE Proposed final 2008 dividend 12 - - - - - -
RRE
RoETNEZAZ+-B  At31 March 2008 409,710 21,976 419 2,461 18,560 453,126
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35. f# s (&)

(b) &=27 (&)
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 1993, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
make distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account
when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related

options expire or be forfeited.
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36. AREE
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

During the current year, an independent
service provider (the "Plaintiff”) issued a legal
proceeding in Hong Kong against a subsidiary
of the Group (the “Defendant”) and a claimed
against the Defendant for a sum of US$627,571
(approximately HK$4,895,000). The Plaintiff
alleged that the Defendant was in breach of a
service agreement dated 3 December 2004 (the
“Agreement”) and failed to make payments in
accordance with the Agreement (the “Claim”).
In this connection, the Defendant also filed
a claim against the Plaintiff and alleged that
the Plaintiff was in breach of the Agreement
in failing to design and develop the products
in substantial conformance to the functional
specification as defined in the Agreement.
Accordingly, the Defendant made a counterclaim
against the Plaintiff for liquidated damages in
the sum of US$100,000 and other damages to
be assessed together with interests and costs

(the "Counterclaim”).

Based on the available evidence and subject to
discovery and expert evidence, the representing
solicitor considered that there were valid
defences to the Claims and the Defendant had
a good chance of success in the Claim and the
Counterclaim. As such, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision is

required to be made.
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36. AAREE (&)

36.

(b) RN&EHEB GEFHRRFT ZHEMK

RBEFBET

LB RERTH
BRREMmA T
RITZHER

8 2~ 7]

A N

R-ZZETNF=A=

Guarantees given to
banks in connection with
facilities granted to:
Subsidiaries

Associates

+—H ZEAHBRK

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) At the balance sheet date, details of other
contingent liabilities in the financial statements

were as follows:

REE ENNE
Group Company

—BRBRN\F —_TTLF —BBN\F —_TTLHF

2008 2007 2008 2007
FET &L TET T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HKS$'000

- - 216,594 214,000
4,212 4,074 3,999 3,992

4,212 4,074 220,593 217,992

At 31 March 2008, the banking facilities granted to

NAEG TRITOERDER T 2 RIT
HABEEBA42,594,0008 L (Z
+FE) MOBEERAEERARD
AIERMGETHMERR ZRITHEAE
EBAA4,212,0008 L (Z T+ 4F :
4,074,000/ 7t) %3,999,000/% 7T (=&
T4 1 3,992,00087C) °
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the subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the
banks by the Company were utilised to the extent
of approximately HK$2,594,000 (2007: Nil), and the
banking facilities guaranteed by the Group and the
Company to associates were utilised to the extent of
approximately HK$4,212,000 (2007: HK$4,074,000)
and HK$3,999,000 (2007: HK$3,992,000),

respectively.
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] REHERH 37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AEERBLEHERHEREETS The Group leases certain of its office premises and
FEVEREIES MECHEETE staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.

Ry —Z2=+%- Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging

from one to twenty years.

RZEEZNF=A=+—H KEEH At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future
ERAEUE 2 G EHE R KRR E D EN minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
HefsE REEERPAENT operating leases falling due as follows:
rEE
Group
—EBNE —EELF
2008 2007
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FRA Within one year 7,910 9,735
RE_FEFHF In the second to fifth years, inclusive 17,849 20,893
(BIEERME)
R A T After five years 30,654 31,880
56,413 62,508
NEE R AR EI E ALLHA At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
ELHE - significant operating lease arrangements.

2008 iEF R4 Annual Report 171



% (BEKR) AR A7 Group Sense (International) Limited

REUBERRMEE (&)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

E-FE\F=A=+-ALEE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

38. #&E 38. COMMITMENTS
B b RE37 2 R T E ARSI In addition to the operating lease commitments
AREFBREEHNE T EREE : detailed in note 37 above, the Group had the
following capital commitments at the balance sheet
date:
TEE
Group
—EENF —ETLF
2008 2007
FET FEr
HK$°000 HK$°000
BRI AVERVERE - Contracted, but not provided for:
W - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 1,706 7,818
REER - RNRAEE A EREE - At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
significant commitments.
0. BEAETRS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) RELSHMBREEMEDHFNL (a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
RGN RAEAFERN - REBBF T in these financial statements, the Group had
BERBAEATLRS the following material transactions with related
parties during the year:
rEE
Group
—EENEF —TELEF
2008 2007
Bt it FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
AN E —Bt& A A Royalty expense charged by
W BR 2 4 =7 an associate of the Group (i) 5,166 2,226
m—H& A REE  Purchase of products from an
ZEm associate (i) 4,505 -
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9. BEAELXRES (F) 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Htat - Notes:

() MEXHEREAER -—RWEB (i) The royalty expense was calculated based on the
NAIRNFERNFEENE LEFE number of electronic handheld products sold by
BRHBEMFELEK  MERD a subsidiary of the Group during the year with
ERllh NI DN A =N B the terms as stipulated in the royalty agreement
RIS Z MRAER A © between the associate and that subsidiary.

(i MEBERAREEZEmRER (i) The purchase from an associate was made
BERNRBRTEFTERP Z AR according to the published prices and conditions
B KA mEH A - offered by the associate to its major customers.

(b) REBEFTEEIEABRH : (b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:
—EENF —ETELF
2008 2007
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

RHESRT Short term employee benefits 13,535 13,089

HEXRIVEY 2 84 Performance related incentive payments 65 667

EEEERKRE Employee share option benefits 285 317

&
RAIRET B R Pension scheme contributions 454 444
TRHEEER Total compensation paid to key

ABZWaE management personnel 14,339 14,517
EXeE—THFBIHREENH Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
WA FES o in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

BE_ZL ) \F=-A=+—HILFE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

0. ZERE D 2RI R

EFEFeRmIARNAEER 2 REEN
T

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are

as follows:
—EENF
2008
TREE Financial assets
RAFETA
BRZxzeR
EE - KFEE
Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss
- held for
trading
FET
HK$'000
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments -
e & 5 8RR Trade receivables -
Sl ATERFE Financial assets included in
e REMER prepayments, deposits and
RRCemERE other receivables -
FEUEE 2 A RIBRE Amounts due from associates -
U — BB A A Amount due from a related
R company -
BRTETA Investments at fair value through
BakziE profit or loss 41,532
fTHEemMIA Derivative financial instruments 5,717
ReRRSEEER Cash and cash equivalents -
47,249

2008 /A& Annual Report

REE
Group

L £/94
& W B K

Loans and

receivables
FET
HK$°000

145,485

39,896

3,402

1,587

252,165

442,535

g
THEE

Available-
for-sale
financial
assets
FET
HK$000

26,094

26,094

it

Total
FET
HK$'000

26,094

145,485

39,896

3,402

1,587

41,532

5,717

252,165

515,878
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BHE_TZL)\F=ZA=1+—HLFE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

40. @R B z2E&m T A (&) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
—EENF rEE
2008 Group
SRBeE Financial liabilities
BAFERZA BB
BExkzE® FEZER
BE-FEEE =R | Bt
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortised
trading cost Total
F#ET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FEE SR K Trade and bills payables
M RE - 106,517 106,517
51| 7 B Ath FE A< Financial liabilities included in
AR % FEET other payables and accruals
E1s ZEBEIE - 18,686 18,686
MTETEIEA Derivative financial instruments 3,775 - 3,775
Mt BERITIEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 2,594 2,594
3,775 127,797 131,572
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BE_ZL ) \F=-A=+—HILFE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

40. HERE D 2@ T A (F) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
—ETLF rEE
2007 Group
EMEE Financial assets
BRAFERA
Bakzem Rk A
BE-BIEER JRE LS BR 3R TREE sEt
Financial

assets at fair

value through Available-

profit or loss for-sale

— held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total

FET FHET FHET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AfHERE Available-for-sale investments - - 26,209 26,209
e E 5 IR Trade receivables - 163,706 - 163,706
5| BTER R - Financial assets included in

Re REAEWR prepayments, deposits

BEAZEMEE  and other receivables - 41,319 - 41,319
U B = N EIBR S Amounts due from associates - 1,549 - 1,549
BERAFEZA Investments at fair value through

BamikoRE profit or loss 41,211 - - 41,211
BeRBELFE  Cashand cash equivalents

HA - 272,885 - 272,885

41,211 479,459 26,209 546,879
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont'd)

HE-FF\F=A=+-ALEE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

40. BERE 2@ T A (F) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
—EELF KEB
2007 Group
EmBaE Financial liabilities
BB AT E
ZeRasE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FHET
HK$°000
JERE SERR Trade and bills payables
JETEE 166,826
Pl A H R R R R Financial liabilities included in
EEtEaEzemAaE other payables and accruals 18,052
184,878
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2 EE\F=ZA=+—HIFE
For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

40. HERE D 2@ T A (F) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)
¥ /N
Company
SREE Financial assets
EXRREWRERR
Loans and receivables
—EENE —EBELF
2008 2007
FETT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB A TR (M55 17)  Interests in subsidiaries (note 17) 764,266 761,381
JEUR B /B A RIBR X Due from subsidiaries 3,000 29,940
P AFERFIE - 4 K& Financial assets included in
HEf KRRz &/ prepayments, deposits and
BE other receivables 192 62
RekREEFEIAE Cash and bank balances 89 78
767,547 791,461
cRaE Financial liabilities
RBERAFECSRERS
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
—EENF —ETEF
2008 2007
FETT FE T
HK$'000 HK$000
JE B B A Bl BR 3K Due to subsidiaries (note 17)
(Hiet17) 193,344 187,707
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For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

BEEREZERERBE

AEBETECRTABRRERE  BWHE

AR R N LAt B U RR K iﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
R ENE SRR NEMENERR
KM BRITIER -

rEEeRTIAEANTERRAEE
Rk FEREE - REBE SRR RINE

cEEZgRMMABERIILERR
HVBUR - Bt g R e

FERR

AEBZEERBFEREHERES
AR - REERAREE EEER DB
AK% YEBIZEP - RZTEN\F=
A=Z+—BERAREFEHEKES
BRNESBES2% (ZET+F BB
79%) o fMiELE P REKRERI MR
R EREAERGEFNENERAEEY
Zo-RAKEERBRERE ~XEEE
BEECZR—HAE AEETEER
B OEEEMRHMEERSF  UER
PRER R 3 Fe e Uk [ 48 BR(E 75 o b Ah - AR
SEHeTHEHNEEENEYKE SRR
Z A B BEE - AR T R & 58
ERRHZBEEBEEB RUtHE &
BEERATEE EERRBEZEE
B KRR -

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments mainly
comprise investments, trade and other receivables,
cash and short term deposits, trade and other

payables, and an interest-bearing bank borrowing.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk and foreign currency risk. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and

they are summarised below.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for
a substantial portion of its business. The top five
customers represent over 52% (2007: over 79%) of
the amount of trade receivables at 31 March 2008.
The failure of these customers to make the required
payments could have a substantial negative impact
on the Group's profits. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors consider that the Group's credit risk is

properly managed and significantly reduced.
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For the Year ended 31 March, 2008

41 BB EREREEERBUER (&)

FERR (&)

HRASEEERAZEEBEZE=
BE #RUEBREHER® -

AEBEMEREE (BRESLRS
HEEB  -AHEERE BAFERL
ANBHRRZBRERETTETR) ZE
ERBRREBHOTRE  MARZES

ERBENZETLAZE@E -

AEBEEERREIZERNER  AAX
REBLE BRAKREZEKE SR
RERMAORZEFER  EEER

Pl EAARE T

IAKBEMEHRABKESERZE
SRk EBEREGEAPMERRNE24

Bz -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for

collateral.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, investments at fair value through
profit or loss and certain derivative instruments, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

The Group's concentration of credit risk is mainly
arising in Korea, Japan and Hong Kong. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the Group's trade receivables relate to a

large number of diversified customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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B¥EREEBRRRBER (&)

M EE

AEBZMEXERAR TEHEAKH
ZHEHBRTRESH AKRETYER
MEz88 WEHRRSERTHER
BN EZAR BREFRAXN
SEZHREARRRITEEERBEM
W ABRER - HUAN & B 3 M DA AA] A K 42
HIE A0 8h BR R LR

REE SRR

AEBENEEERBDECHE TAER
HEsRRAR ZTEFZRESHT
ANeRMEE (MBRKRESER) <3
HIBER  URAREXRB RS RER
WL e

RNEBERRITHEAR ?ﬁljﬂ?éﬁﬁ
BUENBEETRDNGYE R_FT
NE=ZF=+—8" K%lZﬁﬁﬁ%
(AR EERBRARKRZEERE
EREE)BR—FAINY AEEE
ERR HERAKEZEERR K
SEZRITEELTEK -

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group has limited exposure to interest rate
risk relates principally to the Group's short term
bank borrowing. The Group mitigates the risk by
monitoring closely the movements in interest rates
and reviewing its banking facilities regularly. The
Group has not used any interest rate swap to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk as the directors
consider the Group's exposure to interest rate risk is
not significant due to the low balance of the bank

borrowing.
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank facilities. The Group's bank
borrowing would mature in less than one year at 31
March 2008 based on the carrying value of borrowing
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
The directors of the Group consider that the Group's
bank borrowing is insignificant to the Group's total

assets.
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41. B REBERE B SR BER (#) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

REBELERE (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
REEER UEFTORMBEREAAE The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
B REBCRHBEZEFIBMRAOT at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

KE Group
—EE)N\F
2008

ZEAELR
EEX LR=EA t+=fA mt

Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

ENESHERR Trade and bills payables

[N ES 42,335 64,182 - 106,517
H A & T ER R Other payables 9,886 8,634 166 18,686
fTHEemIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,277 2,498 3,775
fERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowing - 1,297 1,297 2,594

52,221 75,390 3,961 131,572
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41 BB EREREEERBUER (&)

REBESERE (&)

ENESER K Trade and bills payables
RS
H At 5 BR 5K Other payables

2NN

alj

REER  ARFSRAEZERDY
RBB—F(CZETLF BB —F) -

ShEE LB

AEEPEXFEERR - ZFERK
BEESUNHEELBE (BEmIEE
BRI - AKBEEHNELRE SR
FMENESERRIAININEE R =T
ZNEFE=ZA=+t—HB AEELFIY"E
TEHIMNESL  AREAEEEIMNR
BRSNS R H SN E
BHAL N EEREFHEZERF

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

—ETLF
2007
=EAELIR
EEXR LIR=EA +=@A #st
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
FHET FHET FHET FET

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000

64,827 101,999 - 166,826

10,937 5,489 1,626 18,052

75,764 107,488 1,626 184,878
Company

The maturity profile of the Company's financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date was over one

year (2007: over one year).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units' functional
currency. Certain trade receivables and payables of
the Group are denominated in foreign currencies. At
31 March 2008, the Group has entered into certain
forward currency contracts to reduce the foreign
currency exposures on Group's overseas investments,
however, it did not meet the criteria for hedge

accounting.
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41. B REBERE B SR BER (#) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

ShEsE b () Foreign currency risk (Continued)

INTRBBREEMEHERZFTTEN0EB The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
AT ARBRBEERSEAEE at the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible
B UEEARASEEHINERN, (B change in the Renminbi and Japanese Yen exchange
B zBRE(HEBEEEREBEZ rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
N EEBTE) - Group's profit/(loss) before tax (due to changes in the

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

SHEIL Ban®R,
(BR) 228
Change in
Change profit/(loss)
in rate before tax
TFET
% HK$'000
—EENF 2008
ABTHIUNTERERIE  If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:
AR% Renminbi 7% 6,012
H Japanese Yen 10% 1,593

ABTTHIUTEBERFAE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:

AR Renminbi 7% (6,012)
Japanese Yen 10% (1,593)

—ETLF 2007

ABTHIUNTERERIE  If Hong Kong dollar weakens against:

AR% Renminbi 10% 4,590

H Japanese Yen 10% 45

EBTHINTEEEZRFE : If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against:
AR Renminbi 10% (4,590)
Japanese Yen 10% (45)

i)
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

41 BB EREREEERBUER (&)

BEAREE Capital management
AEBZEAER  XZEHENRER
EEEFELE  UHEFRRE AN
EoUXHEEBRIESRREE -

The primary objective of the Group's capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholder value.

AEEEREBEARRE W REBLEMN
MZEBHELRAE - ERBAFHEELE
AR NEBEHEHBEIRMN TRE

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic

conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,

Z BB A RRR R B & AN 3 31T AR
- RBE-FTEN\FZA=+—-AR
—ETLEF-A=TBLEEFE - H
B2 BERBRFTEEE -

the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended 31
March 2008 and 31 March 2007.
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41 BB EREREEERBUER (&)

REBARBLLE (RBEER AR
BREREXR - AREZERRR/ER
PUHEEFBEE— - HEARZRBL

BT

MENEE Current assets
RBAG Current liabilities
mEN & Current ratio

42, B R 2L

T BBMER_ZEZNFLATNBE
ESE=oiEREENE -
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio,
which is current assets divided by current liabilities.
The Group's policy is to maintain the current ratio
over one. The current ratios as at the balance sheet

dates were as follows:

REME

Group
—EBNE —EELF
2008 2007
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$°000
608,585 702,022
190,282 248,173
3.20 2.83

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18
July 2008.
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Financial Summary

ABMBELSFEREELM BRI ZES 5

,f/'\ °

£

L'ON

HATER, (&R)
BIR

AERmA,/ (BR)

BHEF/ (BR)
ARAIBERE A

LER RS

AEZEA,/ (BR)

EERERE

BERE
AfERE

ARAIBERE A
FEA5 A

PBRRES

Revenue

Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the
Company
Minority interests

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
equity holders of the
Company

Minority interests

EE (BFR) BMR 23 Group Sense (International) Limited

This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
RESULTS
BZE=RA=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
—ETNF —TTRF ZTTRF —ZTTLF ZBENE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FET FEr FEr FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,355,648 1,309,630 1,490,757 1,237,317 940,732
159,811 62,761 76,271 77,781 (16,579)
1,698 226 (21,880) (17,873) 1,684
161,509 62,987 54,391 59,908 (14,895)
162,084 62,158 54,391 59,324 (15,250)
(575) 829 - 584 355
161,509 62,987 54,391 59,908 (14,895)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=t+—H
As at 31st March,
—ETEFE —TTRF ZTRERF —ZTTLF ZEENF
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
FET FEr FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
912,582 870,703 854,940 859,351 775,755
(323,722) (264,852) (255,092) (250,181) (190,282)
588,860 605,851 599,848 609,170 585,473
588,860 605,022 599,001 607,699 583,617
- 829 847 1,471 1,856
588,860 605,851 599,848 609,170 585,473
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TEVMEZHE

Particulars of Major Properties

REBR -_ZEZENF=Z/A=+—HBHEHTE Particulars of major properties held by the Group as at
MEZFBNT : 31st March, 2008 are set out below:

‘2| B il FH
Name/location Type Lease term
HEWME

Leasehold properties:

1. BB BB BIR I% Sk
EMTREHL2E
£13-245 . Ti5 %
HhEP3SRIF AL
Workshop Nos.13 to 24 on 2nd Floor Industrial Medium-term lease
and Car Parking Space No. P3
on Basement, Sino Industrial Plaza
9 Kai Cheung Road
Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

2. TERERZEESE TR I% T H]
REMRZIHE
BYEERR
FEMNIXER
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense Industrial Medium-term lease
Electronics Factory
Fourth Industrial Zone, Wusha
Chang An, Dongguan
The People’s Republic of China
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GroupSense
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Group Sense (International) Limited

BEFAVHEERNEZERRABARREXEESE

6th Floor, Enterprise Place, No.5 Science Park West Avenue,
Hong Kong Science Park, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong.

www.gsl.com.hk
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